
 
 
 
Committee: 
 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE 

Date: 
 

THURSDAY, 2 SEPTEMBER 2010 

Venue: 
 

MORECAMBE TOWN HALL 

Time: 5.00 P.M. 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence  
 
2. Minutes  
 
 Minutes of meeting held on 24 June 2010 (previously circulated).     
  
3. Items of Urgent Business Authorised by the Chairman  
 
4. Declarations of Interest  
 
5. Local Referendums to Veto Council Tax Rises Consultation (Pages 1 - 24) 
 
 Report of the Head of Financial Services.  
  
6. Member Development Strategy Review (Pages 25 - 45) 
 
 Report of the Head of Democratic Services.  
  
7. Fire Service Consultation on Performance Report and Action Plan (Pages 46 - 60) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director (Community Services).  
  
8. Member Development Charter Level 2 (Pages 61 - 63) 
 
 Report of the Head of Democratic Services.  
  
9. Special Council Meeting 2010 (Pages 64 - 66) 
 
 Report of the Head of Democratic Services.  
  
10. Appointments to Committees and Changes to Membership  
 
 
 
ADMINISTRATIVE ARRANGEMENTS 
 
(i) Membership 

 
 Councillors Karen Leytham (Chairman), Susan Bray (Vice-Chairman), Roger Dennison, 

Melanie Forrest, John Gilbert, John Harrison and Geoff Knight. 
 

 



 

(ii) Substitute Membership 
 

 Councillors June Ashworth (Substitute), Abbott Bryning (Substitute), Chris Coates 
(Substitute), Jean Dent (Substitute), Joyce Pritchard (Substitute) and Malcolm Thomas 
(Substitute) 
 

 
(iii) Queries regarding this Agenda 

 
 Please contact Debbie Chambers, Democratic Services - 01524 582057 - 

dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

(iv) Changes to Membership, substitutions or apologies 
 

 Please contact Members’ Secretary, telephone 582170, or alternatively email 
memberservices@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 

MARK CULLINAN, 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, 
TOWN HALL, 
DALTON SQUARE, 
LANCASTER LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on 24 August 2010.   

 



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
  

 
Local Referendums for Vetoing Council Tax Increases – 

Consultation Response 
02 September 2010 

 
Report of Head of Financial Services 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To inform the Committee of a Government consultation on proposals to replace the current 
system of council tax capping with arrangements to introduce local referendums on council 
tax increases, and to seek approval for the form of the Council’s response. 
 

This report is public. 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the Committee considers the three options for responding to the 
 Consultation, as set out in the report, and authorises the Head of Financial 
 Services to submit a response to the Government along the lines of the 
 Committee’s preferred option.   
 
1 Introduction / Proposal Details 
 
1.1 The Government recently issued a consultation document on proposals to replace 

current council tax capping arrangements, with measures that would require an 
authority to undertake a local referendum if it wished to pursue a council tax increase 
above certain ‘principles’ set out by Government.  The full consultation paper is set 
out at Appendix A. 

 
1.2 The paper has been considered by relevant Officers of the Council and their views 

are summarised in the draft response set out at Appendix B. 
 
1.3 Whilst the consultation is referred to as a technical issue, the setting of council tax 

levels is clearly an important matter for Members and the proposals, if implemented, 
could have major implications for future spending plans and associated consultation, 
as well as for the relationships between different tiers of government.  For these 
reasons, it is considered appropriate that the Council’s Businesss Committee 
considers the draft response prior to it being submitted. 

 
1.4 The closing date for the consultation is 10 September 2010. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



2 Details of Consultation  
 
2.1 No other consultation has taken place, but the proposals have been noted in 

developing the Council’s proposed budget community engagement plan for 2011/12.  
Clearly the outcome of the Government consultation will inform future budget 
consultation exercises. 

 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 Option 1 

That the Committee approves the attached as the Council’s formal response.  This 
would be on the basis that the Committee accepts all the points put forward and has 
no further views to be expressed. 
 
Option 2 
That the Committee makes amendments to the attached response.  Different views 
may be taken on several of the issues raised, and this option provides for that 
scenario. 
 
Option 3 
That the Committee notes the attached document as an Officer technical response to 
the consultation, but that the Committee declines to submit a Member response at 
this time.  In view of the subject matter, it is possible that the Council would prefer the 
response to be deemed purely technical and go forward as an Officer response only. 
 
There are few real risks at this time, given that full consultation is taking place and in 
any event a technical response will be submitted.  

 
3 Conclusion  
 
3.1 Whilst it is recognised that the community should have a direct say in the Council’s 

spending plans, from an Officer perspective it is felt that the proposals would be too 
costly and administratively burdensome.  It is felt that local elections, supported by 
annual budget consultation exercises,  are the most appropriate and cost-effective 
ways of providing communities with the opportunity to express their views on the 
Council’s spending and tax raising decisions. 

 
3.2 If in future, however, Government wishes still to retain some form of system that 

places limitations on budget and council tax increases, it would be helpful in financial 
planning terms to ensure that early, clear information is gained on Government’s 
views regarding what is acceptable.  The current capping legislation does not provide 
for this. 

 
3.3 In view of the issues raised it is felt appropriate to respond, in any of the three ways 

set out in the options above. 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
Any proposals ultimately adopted by Government will be the subject of a full impact 
assessment, but from the information available so far, there are no obvious implications 
arising.  
 

Page 2



FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
Potential implications are outlined in the draft response.  Overall, there is a concern that the 
costs of holding any referendum will outweigh any benefits and prove to be an absolute 
disincentive, especially for any smaller scale proposals to increase council tax levels slightly 
above the Government-set principles. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The section 151 Officer has prepared this report. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
There are no legal implications arising at this stage. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
None. 

Contact Officer: Nadine Muschamp 
Telephone:  01524 582117 
E-mail: nmuschamp@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 3



Page 4



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Draft Consultation Response on Proposals to introduce Local Referendums 
for vetoing Council Tax Increases 

 
For Consideration by Council Business Committee 02 September 2010 

 
 
General Comments: 
 
The Council would welcome the abolition of capping;  it considers that local elections, 
supported by annual budget consultation exercises,  are the most appropriate and cost-
effective ways of providing communities with the opportunity to express their views on the 
Council’s spending and tax raising decisions. 
 
The Council also appreciates the need for Government to have reserve powers regarding 
national spending plans, however.  With this in mind, the existing powers for ‘nominating’ 
authorities (i.e. restricting spending/council taxes for the year subsequent to that in 
question) is considered an efficient way of regulation if the need arises, although it is 
appreciated that this effectively provides a year’s delay in curbing spending. 
 
Further to the above points though, the Council is concerned that the referendum plans put 
forward are too administratively burdensome and costly.  It is felt that generally, local 
authorities would consider the costs associated with holding referendums and the risks 
attached to having a ‘no’ vote far outweigh any potential benefits, and therefore the 
opportunity for the electorate to have a direct say in spending plans would seldom, if ever, 
be used.  The proposals may therefore act as a disincentive to considering specific 
spending initiatives, over and above other plans. 
 
If this is an objective, however, then in terms of transparency and efficiency and 
notwithstanding the views on capping expressed above, the Council would simply rather 
that the Government retained its capping powers, but that it set out the capping criteria 
much earlier, e.g. at the same time as announcing the provisional settlement each year.  
This would make Government’s intentions clearer and would give authorities better 
information with which to plan. The practice of not determining criteria until after councils 
have set their budgets and council taxes does not help with financial planning and does not 
present to the public a ‘joined up’ approach between central and local government.  Future 
budget processes will be difficult enough, given public spending prospects. 
 
Overall therefore, the Council is not supportive of the package of proposals put forward. 
 
 
In particular Government would welcome responses to the following questions: 
 
Question 1:  Do you agree that local precepting authorities, such as town and parish 
councils, should be included within the provisions for council tax referendums? 
 
The answer to this question is based on the premise that referendums would be held only 
for the electorate of the relevant authority, and in turn they would be charged for the costs 
of that referendum through their council tax. 
  
If the referendum proposals are adopted, then it may make sense to make some provision 
to include local precepting authorities, given the scale of tax levels quoted in the 
consultation, but only to cover exceptional circumstances and only if the proposals are to 
act as a disincentive to considering increases in council tax.  In local circumstances, 
however, it is considered than none of the area’s parish or town councils would ever 
consider spending decisions big enough to warrant incurring the costs (and risks) of holding 
a referendum. 

Page 22



 
If so,  - are there details about the budget setting process for local precepting authorities 
 which need to be taken into account? 
 

The arrangements would need to ensure that local precepting authorities have 
sufficient information on which to understand the costs and risks involved – this 
would need to be reflected in timescales.   
 

          - will the ‘double lock’ mechanism work to protect the majority of town and parish 
councils? 
 
The measures could work, but this will depend upon what the de minimis levels are 
set at.  In essence, they would need to be high enough to ensure that the 
referendum requirements would apply to local precepting authorities in only very 
very exceptional circumstances. 
 

 
Question 2: Are the Local Authorities (Conduct of Referendums) (England) Regulations 
2007 the right model for organising and administering council tax referendums?  
 
Yes, there would be nothing to be gained by having separate regulations. 
 
Question 3: Are there any practical difficulties in requiring council tax referendums to take 
place no later than the first Thursday of May? 
 
Practically, in organisational terms it would be very difficult, if not impossible, to go for a 
date earlier than the first Thursday in May (but it is also appreciated that final decision-
making on council tax levels need to be completed as early in the year as possible).  
 
Question 4: What are the advantages and disadvantages of holding a council tax 
referendum on the same day as another local referendum, or jointly with a local and/or 
general election? Current regulations allow for higher expenses per elector in a referendum 
than in a local election – would this raise any concerns if both votes are held on the same 
day?  
 
Advantages of holding on the same day are considered to be: 
- reduced costs (although the arrangements are still expected to be expensive, in excess 
of £100K potentially); 

- increased turnout, potentially. 
 
Disadvantages are considered to be: 
- ensuring capacity within the authority to organise multiple elections/referendums; 
- increasing the complexity of organising the combined arrangements and more 
importantly, of voting for the electors. 

 
Overall the differential in expenses is not likely to be the greatest worry; having the capacity 
to organise multiple elections/referendums is of far greater concern.   
 
Question 5: What provision, if any, should be made for properties where the council tax 
payer is not a local elector? 
 
It is difficult to see how any provisions could be made reasonably within the electoral 
system. 
 

Page 23



Question 6: Does the timetable at Annex A provide sufficient stability and certainty for local 
authorities when planning their budgets? Does it provide sufficient time to organise and 
administer referendums?  
 
The timetable needs more detail before any firm views or assurances could be given.   
Overall though it provides the minimum possible organisational period; it could certainly not 
be any tighter or shorter, and would benefit by starting earlier, giving more time to plan. 
 
Question 7: Is it right to give local authorities the discretion to issue new bills immediately, 
offer refunds at the end of the year or allow credits against liability in the following year? 
 
Yes, billing authorities would need discretion to determine such arrangements in the most 
cost-effective ways, taking account of local circumstances.  In particular, the power to bill 
immediately would be essential to ensure sound cash flow, to maintain collection rates and 
to avoid significant arrears mounting and associated recovery action being needed. 
 
Question 8: How should billing authorities treat bank interest earned on excessive 
increases that have been rejected in a referendum? 
 
Any interest amounts should simply fall to the billing authority’s general fund;  it is 
considered that the amounts involved would not warrant any other (administratively 
burdensome) measures. 
 
Question 9: What practical difficulties, if any, would there be for a billing authority seeking 
to recoup the cost of a referendum held on behalf of one or more precepting authorities? 
 
Assuming that referendums were held on the same day as elections, clear arrangements 
would be needed to determine apportionment of costs, to avoid disputes.  Generally 
speaking, if provision was made for billing authorities to deduct costs up front from precept 
payments there should be few practical difficulties, unless de minimis levels are set too low 
for any local precepting authorities affected (i.e. and the costs of holding referendums 
actually exceeds their precepts). 
 
Question 10: Are there any technical difficulties with the removal of alternative notional 
amount reports? 
 
Yes, potentially.  Any major functional, finance or structural change would still need to be 
reflected in the council tax referendum principles announced by Government, and the 
production of alternative notional amounts (or their equivalent) would still be needed to 
support this.  Without this provisions, there would be the danger that a referendum would 
be needed as a result of changes by central Government, rather than as a result of local 
spending proposals – with all the ensuing costs and administration, as well as the risks 
attached to there being a ‘no’ vote’. 
 
Question 11: With the abolition of capping, is there any reason why authorities should be 
required to calculate a budget requirement each year? 
 
Yes, the budget requirement is standard to all authorities and aids comparison, although 
the inclusion of parish precepts does cause confusion and alternative arrangements could 
be made to exclude these (e.g. simply account for them as payments out of the Collection 
Fund, as with other precepts).  If the budget requirement is abolished, some other measure 
would be needed for comparison.  Ideally, to help with the public’s understanding of local 
authority finance, it would be useful to draw on a reporting level from within authorities’ 
accounts, but there are no obvious alternatives, given recent accounting changes in line 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). 
 

Page 24



 

 

 
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 

Member Development Strategy Review  
2  September 2010 

 
Report of Head of Democratic Services 

  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To agree the revised Member Development Strategy. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
That Council Business Committee adopt the amended Member Development Strategy 
2010/11. 
 
 
Report 
 
At its meeting on 24th June 2010 Council Business Committee reviewed the Member 
Development Strategy in light of the new Corporate Priorities which had been agreed at 
Council on 17th May 2010.  
 
Following a detailed discussion on these and other aspects of the Strategy the Committee 
agreed:  
 

 
(1) That all Members be invited to attend Budget and Performance Panel meetings when 

LDLSP Thematic Group Chairmen would be speaking, to learn about the work of the 
Thematic Groups and how this related to the Council’s priorities. 

 
(2) That a ‘taster’ session on Planning and Licensing be included in the Induction for 2011. 
 
(3) That the Committee recommend to Council that Community Cohesion training be made 

mandatory for Members every 4 years from 2011. 
 
(4) That the following 4 areas be agreed as Priorities for 2010/11 : 
 

(i) Local Government Finance and Statutory Services 
(ii) Community Engagement/Partnership Working and Community Leadership 
(iii) Economic Development and Regeneration 
(iv) Climate Change 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6Page 25



 
 
 
(5) That preparation for Induction 2011 and Level 2 of the North West Charter for Member 

Development be added as projects for the coming year. 
 
(6) That the Member Development Strategy be updated accordingly. 

 
The Strategy has been amended to reflect these recommendations.  
 
With regard to recommendation 3, a report was considered by full Council at its meeting on 
21st July 2010.  
 
Council resolved : 
 
“That Community Cohesion training be mandatory for all newly elected Councillors as part of 
the induction process with effect from May 2011 and all Councillors be encouraged to renew 
this training every 4 years.” 
 
 

 Attached at Appendix A is the draft Member Development Strategy revised in accordance 
with Members’ decisions above. 
 

 Members are requested to adopt the amended Member Development Strategy or make 
further amendments as required. 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None arising from this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None arising directly from this report.  There is a budget of £9,900 in 2010/11 for Member 
training and development and the priorities set out in the Strategy are used to determine 
appropriate allocation of that funding. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The s151 Officer would highlight that in the past, finance related training needs have been 
identified but attendance at courses has often been low.  This was reported at the last 
meeting. 
 
The Council has a need to ensure that its Members have a sound understanding of key 
finance issues;  this is covered in external audits and more explicitly, in developments on 
particular topics - recent treasury management changes being a good example. 
 
Given previous training offered, the availability of on-line material and in view of the 
development of the 2011 induction, it is not intended to push specific training courses in the 
coming months, other than any sessions that may be provided alongside developing the 
2011/12 budget.  That said, the s151 Officer would welcome more specific consideration of 
the Council's approach to finance training for Members as part of developing the 2011 
induction and future years' strategies. 
 

Page 26



LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Council Business Committee minutes 
Member Development Strategy 

Contact Officer: Jenny Kay 
Telephone:  01524 582065 
E-mail: jkay@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 27



 

 

 

 
Member Development 

Strategy  

 
20010/11  

 
 

                                                            
 
 

 
 
 

                                        
 

 

     
  
Version 5.00 September 2010

Page 28



  
 
Lancaster City Council  2 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
1. Commitment to Member development 
 
The Council took the decision in 2002 to commit to its own internal Charter for training and 
development for elected Members and employees. Following that the Council then signed up to the 
North West Charter for elected Member Development.  
 
To formalise this commitment, the Council included within the Terms of Reference of the Council 
Business Committee, responsibility for Member Development. As Members of this Committee, 
Councillors have the responsibility to champion Member Development and cascade information to 
their political groups.   Members of the Council Business Committee are: 
 

 

    Councillor Karen Leytham  (Chairman) 
   

   Councillor Susan Bray (Vice-Chairman) 
 

   Councillor Roger Dennison   
       

   Councillor Melanie Forrest 
 

   Councillor John Gilbert 
 

   Councillor John Harrison 
              

           Councillor Geoff Knight   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



  
 
Lancaster City Council  3 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

2. Member Development Strategy 
 
The first Member Development Strategy for Lancaster City Council was developed by Members 
and adopted by the full Council in February 2007.  This set out the various ways of supporting 
Members in the Town Hall and their Wards as well as the Council’s development priorities for the 
coming year.  The Strategy included a commitment to undertake an annual review which is 
undertaken by Council Business Committee each year to ensure the Council provides the proper 
guidance and relevant support to all Members. 
 
Each year information is gathered from the one to one interviews and annual reviews that have 
take place along with feedback from the variety of training events that take place. The Strategy is 
then reviewed by the Council Business Committee to reflect the information gathered over the 
previous 12 months alongside the issues that had emerged from the Corporate Priorities set by full 
Council for 2010/11. 
 
The Corporate Plan sets out 4 new Corporate Priorities for 2010/11 : 
 

• Economic Regeneration – Supporting our Economy 
• Climate Change 
• Statutory Services – Meeting our Responsibilities 
• Partnership Working & Community Leadership 

 
 
Within these 4 Priorities are 5 key objectives : 
 

• Energy Coast, and Environmental Technology 
 

• Heritage & Cultural Tourism for the District , including Creative Industries and Employment 
 
• To tackle the challenges of Climate Change 
 
• Meet the council’s statutory requirements for service delivery 
 
• To continue to work with our partners to deliver the targets in the Sustainable Community 
Strategy and to bring about other improvements and efficiencies in the way that services 
are delivered locally. 

 
This, therefore is a revised edition of the Elected Member Training and Development Programme 
for 2010/11 agreed as a result of that review. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 30



  
 
Lancaster City Council  4 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
 

3. Learning and Development Priorities and Projects 
 
As Champions for Member Development, the Council Business Committee have developed the 
Member Development Strategy and identified the following six key development priorities for the 
following year : 
 

� Local Government Finance and Statutory Services 
 
� Community Engagement/Partnership Working and Community Leadership 
 
� Economic Development and Regeneration 

 
� Climate Change 

 
� Preparation for Induction 2011 

 
� NWEO Charter Level 2 preparation 

 
 
As this is the final year of the four year term, Member Development opportunities will reduce as the 
elections grow closer and the attention will focus on preparations for the 2011/12 Induction. 
 
Council approved the inclusion of Member Briefings in the Council Calendar taking place on the 
first Thursday of every month excluding August. With these included in the annual calendar it 
raises the profile of the briefings and encourages more Councillors to attend. Council Business 
Committee felt that in this final year, the focus should be on these briefings to provide information 
to Councillors. 
 
With the focus on Partnership working all Members will be invited to attend Budget and 
Performance Panel meetings when the Lancaster District Local Strategic Partnership (LDLSP) 
Chairmen will be speaking to learn about the work of the LDLSP’s Thematic Groups and how this 
relates to the Council’s priorities. 
 
The continued use of different approaches to learning and development will continue to be 
explored and promoted such as shadowing, on-line learning and mentoring when needed. 
 
Projects  
 
In addition to addressing priority needs by means of training and briefing sessions, it is recognised 
that action on two of the key priorities will be delivered by means of projects. This year the work will 
focus on two projects : 
 

• Preparation for Induction 2011 
 

• NWEO Charter Level 2 preparation 
 
To maintain the Charter standards, authorities are reviewed three years after being awarded the 
Charter. Councils have to demonstrate that they are still committed to Member Development and 
are maintaining the same level of standards. This means that Lancaster City Council is due to be 
reviewed in summer 2011. 
 
However there is the option for the Council to be assessed for level 2 of the Charter rather than the 
3 year review at level 1. Many local authorities are now trying to achieve level 2 of the Charter 
rather than being reviewed at level 1.  

Page 31



  
 
Lancaster City Council  5 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
The Corporate Plan 2010-13 sets out a key Corporate Indicator, CH11, for the Council to achieve 
level 2 of the Charter next year which would mean that the Council would skip the review of level 1. 
 

4. Progress 
 
Set out below are a number of achievements and successes which highlight the Council’s 
commitment to Member Development. 
 
 

� The Council was awarded the North West Employers Organisation’s Charter for Member 
Development in November 2008. 

 
�  The Council was also awarded the prestigious Municipal Journal Award for Member 
Development. 

 
�    In 2009/10, 79 training and development sessions were offered to Members. This figure 
does not include the individual support that has been offered to Councillors such as one to 
one sessions on IT.   

 
� Councillors now have the use communal Members’ rooms both at Lancaster and 
Morecambe Town Hall. In these rooms they have the use of several computers, access to 
the Members Library and information on training and development opportunities. 

 
� The use of innovative development methods has been explored. Councillors can take part 
in shadowing opportunities on request and ‘taster’ sessions continue to give Councillors an 
insight into the diverse communities within the district. 

 
� All Councillors now use either a Council laptop or their own machine to receive information. 
Individual support is still offered to new Councillors for them to learn how to use their 
laptops. 

 
� E-newsletters continue as a source of valuable information for Councillors. 

 
� All Council Business Committee meetings are paperless. 

 
� 80% Members have attended some type of training or development session over the last 
12 months. 

 
� A dedicated area on the intranet has been created for Members containing useful 
documents, links and ward information. 

 
� A total of £9,900 is available in 2010/11 to support Member Development activity. 

 
� Member Briefings are included in the Council Calendar and have been received well with 
23 attending the first session. 

 
� To date since the 2007 election, 49 Councillors have undertaken Equalities /Community 
Cohesion training which is an admirable 82 %.  

 
� Council agreed in June 2010 to make Equalities/Community Cohesion training mandatory 
for all new Councillors. 

 
� The Council has committed to achieving Level 2 of the Member Development Charter in its 
Corporate Plan 2010-13 

 

Page 32



  
 
Lancaster City Council  6 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

Members’ comments 

 
          Overview of Local Chinese Community and Culture 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Equalities/Community Cohesion 

 
 

Licensing Regulatory training 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

“Very good, informative, fresh and 
interesting” 
 
Cllr Sarah Fishwick 

“Excellent learnt loads – well 
done” 
 
Cllr Stuart Langhorn 
 

“Very good facilitator” 
 
Cllr Jane Fletcher 
 

“Interesting, informative and 
thought provoking –it was all 
fascinating”.  
 
Cllr Val Histed 

“Enjoyable and informative – 
gives me a better understanding 
and ability to work with different 
ethnic groups.” 
 
Cllr Peter Robinson 

“The information 
gained was very 
useful.” 
 
Cllr Roger Sherlock 

“It will impact on how we view 
information and reports.” 
 
Cllr Keran Farrow 
 

“It’s given me an increased 
understanding of 
needs/difficulties of Chinese 
community” 
 
Cllr Ian McCulloch 

“Increased my awareness” 
 
Cllr Ron Sands 

“It makes us think about the people who we 
don’t hear from and that we need to find 
them.” 
 
Cllr Joyce Taylor 

  
“An excellent refresher 
session” 
 
Cllr Keith Sowden 

“ I felt the course was very 
informative” 
 
Cllr Ken Brown 

Page 33



  
 
Lancaster City Council  7 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

5. One to One Interviews 
 
All Members have been offered a one to one interview to assess their training and development 
needs.  A Personal Development Plan is produced for each Councillor and the information from 
these is used not only to monitor the personal progress of the individual but to develop the 
priorities for inclusion in this Strategy and Training Programme.   
 
A system has been set up to review each Member’s Personal Development Plan after a period of 
12 months. 
 
These are done to suit the individual either by means of a further face to face interview, a 
telephone discussion or by email.  
 
To date, 52 out of 60 Councillors (87%) have taken the opportunity to have a one to one interview 
and where these were done over 12 months ago their Personal Development Plans are under 
review.  
 

6. Attendance at Seminars/Conferences 
 
It has been identified that attendance at some Conferences and Seminars provides an opportunity 
for Members to further their personal development in terms of their knowledge and ability to 
perform particular roles.  Control over the funding for this purpose has been transferred to the 
Head of Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman of the Council Business Committee 
where the cost is in excess of £100 per Member and subject to the needs of the individual Member 
being identified in their Personal Development Plan. 
 
Members wishing to attend such Conferences need therefore to send details to the Head of 
Democratic Services for approval to enable funding to be allocated. 
 
Certain annual conferences have been highlighted for attendance on an annual basis, subject to 
the continued relevance and evaluation of the content of the conferences.  
 
7. Member Development Budget 
 
In terms of budget allocation for Member Development, the Strategy goes beyond 2010/11 when 
the current term of office ends so that budgets set for future years as part of the Medium Term 
Financial Strategy can be programmed to deliver appropriate training and development each year 
as Members’ experience and knowledge grows. For 2010/11 the budget is set as £9,900. 
 
The Head of Democratic Services has been given delegated authority in consultation with the 
Chairman of the Council Business Committee to approve attendance on external training 
courses/Conferences/Seminars.  When the event/course costs more than £100 the Member will be 
expected to provide a report on their return for evaluation purposes.  
 
8. Statutory and Mandatory Training  
 
It is acknowledged that there will on occasions be a need for training required to ensure Members 
understand legislative requirements on them both as individuals and as members of particular 
committees to be repeated and updated, particularly where new legislation is introduced.  This will 
be included in the training programme by the Head of Democratic Services as the need arises. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 34



  
 
Lancaster City Council  8 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
 
9. Members Roles and Responsibilities and the Corporate Plan 
 
The Council sets out its corporate goals and priorities for the coming year in its Corporate Plan 
which is approved by Council each year. Set out in Appendix A is a list of the relevant (Cabinet) 
Members’ roles and responsibilities and detailed information about how they align to the corporate 
priorities. 

 
 
10. Officer Support 
 
All Members of the Council will receive support to enable them to be effective in their role as a 
Councillor.  Members’ Services can offer day to day support, and together with Democratic Support 
they are co-ordinating the Member Development process.  The key officers to contact are: 
 
 
Julie Rutlidge 
Assistant Ceremonial and Members’ Officer  
Tel: (01524) 582170 
Email: jrutlidge@lancaster.gov.uk  
 
 
Jenny Kay 
Democratic Support Officer 
Tel: (01524) 582065 
Email: jkay@lancaster.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

                             
 

 
 
 

 
Page 35



  
 
Lancaster City Council  9 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
 

Appendix A 
 

CABINET PORTFOLIOS 2010/2011 
 

 
Councillor Stuart Langhorn 

 
LDLSP Management Group 
Board 

 
Relationships with other 
Councils 
Performance Management 
Finance/VFM 
Shared Services 
Property 
IS 
Communications 
Rural Affairs 

 
Councillor June Ashworth 

 
LDLSP Children and Young 
People 

 
Children and Young People 
Cultural Services 
Tourism 
 

 
Councillor Abbott Bryning 

 
LDLSP Economy 

 
Economic Development  
Regeneration 
Planning 
 

 
Councillor Peter Robinson 

 
LDLSP Education and Skills 

 
Education and Skills 
Statutory Services Review 
 

 
Councillor David Kerr 

 
LDLSP Health and Wellbeing 

 
Housing 
Environmental Health 
 

 
Councillor Jon Barry 

 
LDLSP Environment 

 
Climate Change 
Clean and Green 
Markets 
Cycling Demonstration Town 
Project 
 

 
Councillor Eileen Blamire 

 
LDLSP Safety 

 
Community Safety 
Legal and HR 
Governance 
 

 
Councillor Jane Fletcher 

 
Valuing People 

 
Older people 
Equalities 
Skerton Project 
Third Sector Grants 
 

 

Page 36



  
 
Lancaster City Council  10 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

 
 

Corporate Priority: 
Economic Regeneration - Supporting our economy 

Objective 1: Energy Coast, and Environmental Technology  

Key Targets:   
 
NI152 – Working age people claiming out of work benefits. 
NI153 – Working age people claiming out of work benefits in the worst performing 

neighbourhoods. 
NI170 – Previously developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 years 
NI171 – VAT registration rate (source data ONS) target subject to LAA 09/10 negotiations  
NI172 – VAT registered businesses showing growth (source ONS) not within LAA  
 
LOCAL -   Tourism spend for last available year (NB. always 12 months lag ) 
LOCAL -   Number of individuals assisted with integrated support 
LOCAL -   Number of businesses assisted through business support measures 
LOCAL -   Number of business start ups as a result of local initiatives 
LOCAL -   Number of new businesses as a result of local initiatives surviving 12 months 
LOCAL -   Number of hectares of public realm created or improved 
LOCAL -   Number of enquiries at Visitor Information Centres 

Action by:  

Key Actions:  Lead Cab Mem  

 
1.1 Implement with partner organisations a sustainable economic 
regeneration programme for the District based upon the LDLSP 
Economy Thematic Group Economy Action Plan and our own 
Tourism Strategy. 

 

 
Councillor Bryning, 
apart from Tourism 
Councillor Ashworth 

1.2 Complete Economic Investment Strategy by developing projects 
around each of the following 2 Vision Themes and apply for 
funding support for each.  

� Knowledge Economy 
� Heysham to M6 Employment Corridor 

 

 
 

Councillor Bryning, 

1.3 Deliver the council’s actions in the LSP’s Education, Skills, and 
Opportunities Thematic Group Action plan 

� Prepare Local Employment Skills Plan 
� Develop Employer Engagement Action Plan 
� Prepare Outreach and Engagement Action Plans for 
workless groups and individuals 

 

Councillor Robinson 

1.4 To deliver the council’s Energy Coast contribution to the Mid Lancs  
MAA Councillor Bryning 

Page 37



  
 
Lancaster City Council  11 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

 

Projects 

• Initial assessment of the viability of potential employment sites along the Heysham to M6 
Employment Corridor –  Councillor Bryning 

• Lancaster Science Park –  Councillor Bryning 
• Middleton Resource Recovery Park –  Councillor Bryning 
• Deliver a package of integrated support for workless individuals in the district’s most 
deprived wards – Councillor Robinson 

• Infrastructure Planning Commission engagement on National Grid upgrade –  Councillor 
Bryning 

 
• Deliver the Business Support rent grant scheme and work with partners to develop other business 
support initiatives –  Councillor Bryning  

• Work with county council to develop a package of districtwide transport proposals that address 
traffic related air quality and climate change challenges –  Councillor Bryning  

• Energy Coast related Projects –  Councillor Bryning  
• District Wide Broadband project –  Councillor Bryning 
• Establish  effective Business Forums –  Councillor Bryning  
• Centenary House (Co-op) feasibility study –  Councillor Bryning  
• Morecambe Football Club – Councillor Ashworth 

 
 
Rationale:  Economic Investment Strategy, Sustainable Community Strategy 
 

Page 38



  
 
Lancaster City Council  12 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

Objective 2: Heritage & Cultural Tourism for the District , including Creative Industries and 
Employment 

Key Targets:   
Action by:  

Key Actions:  Lead Cab Mem  

2.1  Review Development Agreement with Canal Corridor partner Councillor Bryning 

2.2  Implement actions arising from the Cultural Heritage Investment 
Strategy 
 

 
Councillor Ashworth 

2.3  To deliver the council’s heritage, cultural, and tourism contribution 
to the Mid Lancs  MAA 

 
Councillor Ashworth 

2.4  Develop an Area action plan for Morecambe 
Councillor Ashworth 

2.5 Complete the Economic Investment Strategy by developing 
projects around each of the following 3 Vision Themes and apply 
for funding to support each. 
• Re-Inventing Morecambe 
• Lancaster City and Riverside 
• Carnforth northern Gateway 

 

Councillor Bryning  
Councillor Bryning  
Councillor Langhorn 

Projects 
 

� Prepare Luneside East for development including site remediation - Councillor Bryning 
� Survey and viability work for the wider Luneside area -  Councillor Bryning  
� Implement the refreshed West End Action Plan including a revised proposal for the Chatsworth 
Gardens - Councillor Kerr 

� Public realm design proposals for Morecambe Central Promenade area -  Councillor Ashworth  
� Work to deliver a programme of rural development initiatives in partnership with Lancashire County 
Council – Councillor Langhorn 

� Morecambe Area Action Plan  - Councillor Ashworth  
� Research and develop a Concordat for Morecambe Bay Regional Park - Councillor Ashworth  
� Lancaster Market – Councillor Barry 
� Cultural Heritage Investment Strategy - Councillor Ashworth  
� Morecambe Townscape Heritage Initiative 2 - Councillor Ashworth  
� Lancaster Square Routes – Councillor Bryning 
� Public realm design proposals for Morecambe urban centre and promenade - Councillor Ashworth 

 
 

 
Rationale: Sustainable Community Strategy,  Cultural Heritage Investment Strategy 
 

Page 39



  
 
Lancaster City Council  13 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 

Corporate Priority: 
Climate Change 

Objective: 3.  To tackle the challenges of Climate Change 

Key Targets:  
Carbon Reduction Targets NI 185 

• In 2010/11    a 10% reduction 
• By 2020       a  34% reduction 
• By 2050       a  80% reduction 

Adaptation NI 188 
Planning to Adapt to Climate Change - 2010/11   Level 2 
                                                            - 2011/12    Level 3 
                                                            - 2012/13    Level 4 
NI 192- Household waste reused / recycled / composted 

• 2010/11- 42% 
• 2011/12- 48% 
• 2012/13- 50% 

Local Targets 
• Loft Insulation from 150mm to 270mm in all council houses by end of 2011/12 
• Double Glazing in council homes                 - 2010/11   82.5% 

-  2011/12  86.5% 
-  2012/13  88.5% 

• “A” Rated Boilers fitted in council homes     - 2010/11  80.0% 
-  2011/12  87.0% 
-  2012/13  95.0%   

• Increase Council Housing SAP ratings from 70 to 73 by March 2013 
• Local- Continue to reuse / recycle at least 50% of all bulky household waste collected 

Action by:  

Key Actions:  Lead Cab Mem  

3.1  Deliver the actions in the Climate Change Energy Action Plan Councillor Barry 
3.2 Deliver the appropriate actions from the Energy Savings Trust 

Green/Grey Fleet Review. 
 

Councillor Barry 

3.3 Deliver the housing capital programme energy efficiency projects 
 

 
Councillor Kerr 

3.4 Deliver the corporate municipal buildings repairs programme 
 

 
Councillor Barry 

3.5 Implement the Lancashire  Waste Strategy - 2008-2020- 'Rubbish 
to Resources' 

 

 
Councillor Barry 

Page 40



  
 
Lancaster City Council  14 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
Projects 

 
• Investigate how technology could be used to further reduce CO2 emissions from the 
Council's own vehicle fleet - Councillor Barry  

• Develop & implement energy reduction plans for each corporate building over a 2 year period 
– Councillor Barry 

• Conduct feasibility study  to develop renewable technologies in suitable corporate buildings – 
Councillor Barry 

• Implement actions arising from the district wide Thermal Image Survey – Councillor Barry  
• Roll out the Internal Climate Change Communications Plan – Councillor Barry  
• Introduction of food waste collection  and mixed recycling – Councillor Barry  
Rationale :- Sustainable Community Strategy, City Council’s Climate Change Strategy 

Page 41



  
 
Lancaster City Council  15 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
Corporate Priority: 
Statutory Services 

Objective: 4.  Meet the council’s statutory requirements for service delivery 
Key Targets: 
Clean & Green 
 
NI 195 - Levels of street and environmental cleanliness- 

• 2010/11 litter 8%, detritus 12%, graffiti 2%, flyposting 0% 
• 2011/12 litter 8%, detritus 11%, graffiti 2%, flyposting 0% 
• 2012/13 litter 8%, detritus 10%, graffiti 2%, flyposting 0% 

  
Local- % of customer requests with regard to cleanliness issues responded to within 1 working day- 
target 90% 
  
  
Local- Reduce air pollution through air quality action plans to achieve statutory objective levels 
 

Action by:  
Key Actions: 
 

Lead Cabinet Member 

4.1  To monitor and review all statutory services to provide assurance 
that minimum standards can be met and to quantify any services 
provided above minimum standards to enable a decision to be 
made as to whether or not this is a priority to continue in the 
future and that it provides value for money. 

 
 

Councillor Robinson 

4.2   Clean and Green Services 
Meet our responsibilities by maintaining the cleanliness of our 
streets & public spaces  

� Deliver the Council's actions in the LDLSP's Environment 
Thematic Group Action plan  

� Maintain the cleanliness of our streets & public spaces through 
a combination of education, enforcement and service delivery.  

� Work with other organisations/stakeholders to deliver joint 
environmental initiatives (eg Clean Sweep, Street Pride, 
Community Payback)  

� Deliver other key environmental services (eg grounds m’tce, 
playgrounds) in such a way as to contribute to this objective 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Councillor Barry 

Page 42



  
 
Lancaster City Council  16 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
Projects 

• Clean Sweep ,Community Payback , & Street Pride – Councillor Barry  
• Review of districtwide playground provision and grounds maintenance– Councillor Barry 
• Housing Options/ Choice Based Lettings – Councillor Kerr 
• Air Quality Action Plans – Councillor Barry  
• Democratic Renewal Project – Councillor Blamire 
• To undertake a review of the council’s fair pay structure – Councillor Blamire 
• Workforce Planning – Councillor Blamire 
• HR/Payroll replacement programme – Councillor Blamire  
• Phase 2 of the Revenues shared service project – Councillor Langhorn 
 

 
 
Rationale:  To ensure that any statutory service provided above the minimum level is as a result of 
democratic consideration and prioritisation. 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



  
 
Lancaster City Council  17 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
 

Corporate Priority: 
Partnership Working & Community Leadership 

Objective: 5. To continue to work with our partners to deliver the targets in the 
Sustainable Community Strategy and to bring about other improvements and 
efficiencies in the way that services are delivered locally. 
 
Key Targets:  
To increase overall customer satisfaction levels from 39% to 50% by 2011 
To meet the council’s NI 179 targets for efficiency savings 
 

Action by:  

Key Actions:  Lead Cab Mem  

5.1 To deliver the council’s agreed contributions to achieve the priorities 
and outcomes in the Sustainable Community Strategy and LDLSP’s 
Thematic Group action plans including;- 
• Equality and Diversity,  
• Health and Wellbeing,  
• Safety  
• Children and Young People 

 
 
 

Councillors 
Fletcher, Kerr, 
Blamire and 
Ashworth 

5.2  To implement the council’s agreed programme for Shared Services 
and research other opportunities wherever possible 

 

 
Councillor 
Langhorn 

5.3  To produce a Community Plan for Skerton resulting from the 
successful completion of the Connecting Communities Project. 

 
Councillor 
Fletcher 

5.4  To work with partners to secure the most effective outcomes from 
utilizing Performance Reward Grant  monies 

 
Councillor 
Langhorn 

5.5  To become an ‘achieving’ authority’ under the Equality Framework 
for Local Government’ by March 2011.. 

 
Councillor 
Fletcher 

Page 44



  
 
Lancaster City Council  18 Promoting City, 
Member Development Strategy  Coast and Countryside 
Version 5.0 – September 2010  

 
Projects 

• Refresh of the Sustainable Community Strategy Councillor Langhorn 
• Officer project groups of the LDLSP – 

• Arts                                      Councillor Ashworth 
• Asset Mgt                              Councillor Barry 
•  Communications                  Councillor Langhorn  

• Big Ticket projects, including :- 
• Affordable Housing               Councillor Kerr  
• Community Cohesion           Councillor Langhorn 
• Health Inequalities                Councillor Kerr  
• Climate Change                    Councillor Barry 
• Worklessness                       Councillor Bryning  
  

• Connecting Communities Project – Councillor Fletcher  
• Facilities Management – Councillor Langhorn 
• Equality Framework ‘achieving project – Councillor Fletcher  
 

 
Rationale: Sustainable Community Strategy, Shared Services Programme 

 
 
 
 

Page 45



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
 

Lancashire Fire and Rescue Services : 
Performance Report and Action Plan 2010 

02 September 2010 
 

Report of Corporate Director (Community Services) 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To briefly review the Fire and Rescue Services performance report and action plan 2010 and 
to consider proposed changes in the way services are delivered. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Committee note the Performance Report and Action Plan 2010. 
 
(2) That Committee comment on the five key service areas proposed for change as 

outlined in the body of this report and detailed in the Appendix and authorise 
the Corporate Director (Community Services) to respond to the consultation on 
the basis of the Committee's comments". 

 
 
1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 The Fire and Rescue Performance Report and Action Plan 2010 provides information 

on how they have performed during 2009/10, gives feedback on the findings of 
external inspections and includes proposals for change in respect of: 

 
• review of specialist rescue and support services 
• developing a strategy for Unwanted Fire Signals 
• review of the retained duty system catchment areas for recruitment 

 
1.2 On the consultation part of the report (section 5) comments are requested by 

07 November 2010.  The full report can be found at www.lancsfirerescue.org.uk. 
 
1.3 In terms of actual performance, most performance targets have been met or 

exceeded although some concerns are expressed about workforce accident figures 
during the severe winter weather and during more hazardous training exercises.  In 
addition, some of the recruitment targets for BME and gender have not been met.  
Concern is also expressed at the high turnover rate in the Retained Duty System 
(RDS) staff and ways of improving retention are built into the action plan. 

 

Agenda Item 7 Page 46



1.4 In addition, the performance assessment review by the Audit Commission for 
2009/10 resulted in an “excellent” judgement – the only excellent rating out of 46 
English Fire Authorities. 

 
1.5 The action plan reports on five main improvement areas, but also provides a 

reference to a further forty plus items which can be accessed via the Fire and 
Rescue web site. 

 
 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 In the provision of specialist rescue and support over and above that which is 

available on front line fire engines, three specialist areas are proposed for review 
 

• major incident support/heavy rescue 
• boat provision 
• rope rescue team 

 
2.2 Major Incident Support:  report identifies that there are two specialist teams located 

at Preston and Leyland which operate county-wide.  The proposal is to close the 
Preston team down and to focus on using the Leyland based team to provide the 
sole major incident support and heavy rescue capability in the future (see appendix 
for details).  There are also two further options around whether this team should 
operate as now or be enhanced to provide a quicker night time response. 

 
2.3 Boat Provision:  Two boat units are currently provided at Preston and Penwortham.  

However, with the upgrading of seven strategically located fire engines to ‘water 
rescue pump status’ the demand for boat usage has reduced and the proposals is to 
keep both boats at Penwortham but only have one trained team.  (See appendix for 
details) 

 
2.4 Rope Rescue:  A specialist rope rescue team is based at St Anne’s and they deal 

with more complex incidents of rescue of people or animals above and below ground.  
However, this arrangement relies on volunteers providing the service which has 
caused some operational difficulties.  Four options for change are considered but 
option 4 is the preferred solution which moves away from using volunteers to use the 
full time staff at St Anne’s and the Major Incident Support Team at Leyland for rope 
rescue.  (See appendix for details) 

 
2.5 There are also proposals to change the high level of unwanted fire signals received 

by the service.  These are ‘false alarms’ generated from automated systems.  Almost 
one-third of 20,367 emergency incidents were this type of false alarm.  Detailed 
proposals are intended to reduce the number of mobilisations to unwanted fire signal 
incidents.  (See appendix for details) 

 
2.6 Retained Duty System (RDS) staff are those staff who provide an on-call response – 

usually in the more rural areas of the county.  They are normally recruited from a 
geographic area which means they can get to their station within five minutes of an 
emergency alarm.  However, this has created recruitment difficulties so the proposal 
is to extend this travel time to seven minutes for nine rural stations, including 
Silverdale and Hornby. 

 
 

Page 47



3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 The performance aspects of the report are for information and the Business 

Committee is itself a consultee of Section 5. 
 
 
4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 The options/options analysis for the five review areas has been carried out by Fire 

and Rescue and included in the appendix to this report. 
 
 
5.0 Conclusion  
 
5.1 Lancashire Fire and Rescue provide an excellent service to the people of Lancashire 

as assessed by the Audit commission.  Proposals are made to make the service 
more efficient whilst maintaining quality and in some areas making further 
improvements and members comments are requested on those changes. 

 
 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
This is an information and consultation report and has no direct impact 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no financial implications to this authority as a result of this report. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments to add. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
None 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Lancashire Fire and Rescue Performance 
Report and Action Plan 2010 
 

Contact Officer: Peter Loker 
Telephone:  01524 582501 
E-mail: peterloker@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref: reports/councilbus/03 

 

Page 48



Se
ct

io
n 

5 
- 

CO
N

SU
LT

AT
IO

N

29

T
h

is
 s

ec
ti

o
n

 p
ro

vi
d

es
 a

 b
ri

ef
 

o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
sp

ec
if

ic
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 w
h

ic
h

 w
e 

ar
e 

in
vi

ti
n

g
 c

o
m

m
en

t.
 T

h
e 

fu
ll 

re
p

o
rt

s 
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
es

e 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 c
an

 b
e 

vi
ew

ed
 a

t 

an
d

 it
 is

 s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 
re

co
m

m
en

d
ed

 t
h

at
 t

h
es

e 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 t

o
 g

ai
n

 a
 f

u
lle

r 
p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e 
re

le
va

n
t 

is
su

es
.

T
hi

s 
ye

ar
 w

e 
ar

e 
se

ek
in

g 
a 

br
oa

de
r 

vi
ew

 o
n 

th
re

e 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
is

su
es

 b
ef

or
e 

de
te

rm
in

in
g 

a 
w

ay
 

fo
rw

ar
d 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
ou

r:

w
w

w
.la

n
cs

fi
re

re
sc

u
e.

o
rg

.u
k

P
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f s
pe

ci
al

is
t 

re
sc

ue
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 o

ve
r 

an
d 

ab
ov

e 
th

at
 w

hi
ch

 is
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
fir

e 
en

gi
ne

s;

A
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 u
nw

an
te

d 
fir

e 
si

gn
al

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

aj
or

 
pr

ob
le

m
 o

f f
al

se
 a

la
rm

s;
 

an
d

R
et

ai
ne

d 
du

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 

st
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 th
e 

ca
tc

hm
en

t a
re

as
 fr

om
 

w
hi

ch
 w

e 
re

cr
ui

t s
ta

ff.

1. 2. 3.

A
s 

al
w

ay
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 c
on

su
lt 

w
id

el
y 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
tw

el
ve

 w
ee

ks
 fo

r 
th

is
 

th
pu

rp
os

e 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 1

6
 A

ug
us

t a
nd

 
th

en
di

ng
 o

n 
7

 N
ov

em
be

r.
 T

he
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

P
hy

si
ca

l d
is

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
of

 th
e 

re
po

rt

E
le

ct
ro

ni
c 

pu
bl

ic
at

io
n 

on
 o

ur
 

w
eb

si
te

P
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 to

 a
ll 

st
af

f o
n 

th
e 

su
bj

ec
t m

at
te

r

F
ac

e 
to

 fa
ce

 d
ia

lo
gu

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 v
ia

 o
ur

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
pa

ne
ls

 a
nd

 
ot

he
r 

m
ee

tin
gs

D
eb

at
e 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 in

te
re

st
ed

 
pa

rt
ie

s 
e.

g.
 e

le
ct

ed
 m

em
be

rs
, 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s

D
is

cu
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
se

ct
or

D
ia

lo
gu

e 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

tr
ad

e 
un

io
ns

T
he

 F
ire

 A
ut

ho
rit

y'
s 

P
la

nn
in

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 w
ill

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ou

tc
om

e 
of

 th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

at
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
w

hi
ch

 it
 is

 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 th
at

 a
ny

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 w

ill
 b

e th
m

ad
e 

by
 th

e 
fu

ll 
F

ire
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

on
 1

3
 

D
ec

em
be

r.

W
e 

w
el

co
m

e 
yo

ur
 v

ie
w

s 
an

d 
w

ill
 b

e 
ha

pp
y 

to
 r

ec
ei

ve
 a

ny
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 b
y 

le
tte

r 
or

 e
-m

ai
l.

If 
yo

u 
ne

ed
 a

ny
 fu

rt
he

r 
as

si
st

an
ce

 o
r 

cl
ar

ifi
ca

tio
n 

pl
ea

se
 r

in
g 

01
77

2 
86

25
45

 
an

d 
as

k 
fo

r 
th

e 
ris

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
. P

le
as

e 
se

nd
 a

ny
 c

om
m

en
ts

 to
:

T
h

e 
R

is
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
La

nc
as

hi
re

 F
ire

 a
nd

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 
H

Q
G

ar
st

an
g 

R
oa

d
F

ul
w

oo
d

P
re

st
on

, P
R

2 
3L

H
E

-m
ai

l:
rm

p@
la

nc
sf

ire
re

sc
ue

.o
rg

.u
k

H
O

W
 T

O
 R

E
S

P
O

N
D

Page 49



5.
1 

SP
EC

IA
LIS

T 
RE

SC
U

E 
A

N
D

 S
U

PP
O

RT

T
h

e 
fu

ll 
re

p
o

rt
 o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
es

e 
p

ro
p

o
sa

ls
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
ce

ss
ed

 a
t 

.
w

w
w

.la
n

cs
fi

re
re

sc
u

e.
o

rg
.u

k

30

T
he

 F
ire

 a
nd

 R
es

cu
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
A

ct
 

20
04

 r
eq

ui
re

s 
us

 to
 m

ak
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

sc
ue

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
fr

om
 r

oa
d 

tr
af

fic
 c

ol
lis

io
ns

. F
or

 th
is

 
re

as
on

 -
 a

nd
 fo

r 
re

sc
ue

 p
ur

po
se

s 
at

 o
th

er
 n

on
-f

ire
 e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s 

- 
al

l 
si

xt
y 

LF
R

S
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
s 

ca
rr

y 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 m
od

er
n 

re
sc

ue
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
W

hi
ls

t t
hi

s 
eq

ui
pm

en
t 

is
 o

fte
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

, a
 le

ve
l o

f 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

ov
er

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 th

at
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
vi

a 
th

is
 r

ou
te

 is
 

so
m

et
im

es
 n

ee
de

d.
 T

hi
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

du
e 

to
 th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

em
er

ge
nc

y,
 o

r 
it 

m
ay

 b
e 

th
at

 w
e 

re
qu

ire
 m

or
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ed
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t, 
or

 s
ki

lls
, w

hi
ch

 a
re

 n
ot

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 a

 tr
ad

iti
on

al
 fi

re
 

en
gi

ne
.

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 d

em
an

d 
is

 lo
w

, t
he

re
 

ar
e 

oc
ca

si
on

s 
w

he
re

 it
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
di

ffi
cu

lt 
- 

if 
no

t 
im

po
ss

ib
le

 -
 to

 s
af

el
y 

re
so

lv
e 

so
m

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

w
ith

ou
t t

hi
s 

en
ha

nc
ed

 p
ro

vi
si

on
. I

n 
re

ce
nt

 
ye

ar
s 

w
e 

ha
ve

 a
dd

ed
 to

 o
ur

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t r

es
po

ns
e 

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
th

ro
ug

h 
bo

th
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
an

d 
as

 a
 r

es
ul

t, 
w

e 
no

w
 

be
lie

ve
 s

om
e 

ra
tio

na
lis

at
io

n/
co

ns
ol

id
at

io
n 

is
 n

ee
de

d.
 T

o 

de
liv

er
 b

et
te

r 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
, 

w
e 

ha
ve

 th
er

ef
or

e 
ex

am
in

ed
 

th
re

e 
ar

ea
s 

of
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t s
up

po
rt

in
 d

et
ai

l:

M
aj

or
 in

ci
de

nt
 

su
pp

or
t/h

ea
vy

 r
es

cu
e

B
oa

t p
ro

vi
si

on

R
op

e 
R

es
cu

e 
Te

am

5.
1.

1 
M

aj
or

 In
ci

de
nt

 S
up

po
rt/

H
ea

vy
 R

es
cu

e

A
t p

re
se

nt
, o

ur
 m

aj
or

 in
ci

de
nt

 
su

pp
or

t/h
ea

vy
 r

es
cu

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

co
m

pr
is

es
 a

 m
aj

or
 in

ci
de

nt
 

su
pp

or
t u

ni
t (

M
IS

U
) 

lo
ca

te
d 

at
 

P
re

st
on

 fi
re

 s
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

an
 U

rb
an

 
S

ea
rc

h 
an

d 
R

es
cu

e 
(U

S
A

R
) 

te
am

 
ba

se
d 

in
 L

ey
la

nd
.

T
he

 M
IS

U
 -

 w
hi

ch
 is

 fu
lly

 fu
nd

ed
 

by
 th

e 
fir

e 
au

th
or

ity
 -

 c
om

pr
is

es
 a

 
pr

im
e 

m
ov

er
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

nd
 

de
m

ou
nt

ab
le

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t p

od
 

w
hi

ch
 w

as
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
 1

99
6 

as
 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 n
ew

 r
es

cu
e 

st
ra

te
gy

.
W

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 r

es
cu

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t o

n 
al

l s
ix

ty
 fr

on
t l

in
e 

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ch

an
ge

s 
ov

er
 

th
e 

ye
ar

s,
 th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

ha
s 

no
w

 
be

en
 s

up
er

se
de

d.
 T

he
 M

IS
U

 is
 

al
te

rn
at

el
y 

cr
ew

ed
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

t P
re

st
on

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff 
ha

ve
 

a 
w

id
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l r

em
it 

i.e
. t

he
y 

m
ay

 b
e 

on
 a

 c
on

ve
nt

io
na

l f
ire

 
en

gi
ne

 o
ne

 d
ay

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
IS

U
 th

e 
ne

xt
. F

ou
r 

po
st

s 
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
st

at
io

n'
s 

st
af

fin
g 

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
is

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 a

nd
 th

e 
M

IS
U

 is
 im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

24
 

ho
ur

s 
a 

da
y.

T
he

 U
S

A
R

 te
am

 -
 w

hi
ch

 is
 fu

lly
 

fu
nd

ed
 b

y 
ce

nt
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t -

 
w

as
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
 2

00
7 

as
 p

ar
t o

f 
a 

na
tio

na
l r

es
ili

en
ce

 p
ro

je
ct

 (
19

 
ot

he
r 

U
S

A
R

 te
am

s 
ar

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

co
un

tr
y)

 a
nd

 c
om

pr
is

es
 

th
re

e 
pr

im
e 

m
ov

er
 v

eh
ic

le
s,

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 d
em

ou
nt

ab
le

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

po
ds

 a
nd

 fi
fte

en
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t s
ta

ff 
w

ho
se

 s
ol

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
is

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t 

re
sc

ue
 i.

e.
 th

ey
 d

o 
no

t f
ig

ht
 fi

re
s.

 
W

hi
ls

t t
he

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 s

ki
ll 

se
ts

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

U
S

A
R

 u
ni

t s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 
ex

ce
ed

 th
os

e 
of

 th
e 

M
IS

U
, t

he
 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 
U

S
A

R
 te

am
 m

ea
n 

th
at

 th
ey

 a
re

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
ly

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

da
y 

(n
or

m
al

ly
 0

80
0 

- 
18

00
).

 A
t 

ni
gh

t, 
st

af
f a

re
 o

n 
ca

ll 
fr

om
 h

om
e 

an
d 

th
e 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 ti

m
e 

to
 a

n 
in

ci
de

nt
 w

ill
 th

er
ef

or
e 

in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

up
 to

 4
5 

m
in

ut
es

. O
n 

th
is

 b
as

is
, 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t d

ua
l p

ro
vi

si
on

 i.
e.

 
M

IS
U

 a
nd

 U
S

A
R

, h
as

 b
ee

n 
su

st
ai

ne
d 

w
ith

 jo
in

t a
tte

nd
an

ce
 to

 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
da

y 
an

d 
ut

ili
sa

tio
n 

of
 U

S
A

R
 a

t n
ig

ht
 o

nl
y 

w
he

re
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 r

es
po

ns
e 

tim
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
cc

ep
ta

bl
e.

im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

/o
r 

to

Page 50



31

A
ct

iv
ity

 le
ve

ls
 fo

r 
th

e 
M

IS
U

 a
re

 
ve

ry
 lo

w
 a

s 
ev

id
en

t f
ro

m
 ta

bl
es

 
5.

1 
an

d 
5.

2 
op

po
si

te
 w

hi
ch

 c
ov

er
 

a 
th

re
e-

ye
ar

 p
er

io
d 

an
d 

sh
ow

: 

m
ob

ili
sa

tio
ns

 i.
e.

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

cc
as

io
ns

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

w
as

 d
es

pa
tc

he
d 

to
 

an
 in

ci
de

nt
; a

nd
 

at
te

nd
an

ce
s 

i.e
. t

he
 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 o

cc
as

io
ns

 th
e 

ve
hi

cl
e 

ac
tu

al
ly

 a
tte

nd
ed

 
an

 in
ci

de
nt

. 

W
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

th
is

 a
sp

ec
t i

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 s
ep

ar
at

el
y 

in
 

se
ct

io
n 

5.
1.

2.

Ta
bl

e 
5.

1 
- 

M
IS

U
 A

ct
iv

ity
 (E

xc
lu

di
ng

 w
at

er
 re

sc
ue

) 2
00

7/
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
 -

 H
ou

r P
er

io
d

M
IS

U
 M

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s

82 69 71 22
2

Y
ea

r

20
07

20
08

20
09

To
ta

l

M
IS

U
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce
s

30 29 33 92

Ta
bl

e 
5.

2 
- 

M
IS

U
 A

ct
iv

ity
 (E

xc
lu

di
ng

 w
at

er
 re

sc
ue

) 2
00

7/
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
00

 -
 0

80
0 

H
ou

rs
 

M
IS

U
 M

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s

36 23 33 92

Y
ea

r

20
07

20
08

20
09

To
ta

l

M
IS

U
 A

tt
en

d
an

ce
s

18 11 16 45

T
he

 U
S

A
R

 te
am

 a
ct

iv
ity

 is
 

si
m

ila
rly

 lo
w

 i.
e.

 3
00

 
m

ob
ili

sa
tio

ns
/1

35
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
sa

m
e 

pe
rio

d 
an

d 
it 

is
 

ev
id

en
t t

ha
t a

 r
at

io
na

lis
at

io
n 

of
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
is

 fe
as

ib
le

.

P
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

e 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t r

es
cu

e 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t f
un

ct
io

n 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
U

S
A

R
 te

am
 a

lo
ne

 w
ou

ld
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
th

e 
op

tim
um

 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 -
 in

 a
n 

eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
ki

lls
 s

en
se

 -
 w

hi
ls

t 
al

so
 e

na
bl

in
g 

a 
co

st
 s

av
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
re

du
ct

io
n 

of
 fo

ur
 s

ta
ff 

at
 P

re
st

on
 

fir
e 

st
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ab

se
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

M
IS

U
. I

t m
us

t b
e 

re
co

gn
is

ed
, 

ho
w

ev
er

, t
ha

t a
n 

ex
te

nd
ed

 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t t
im

e 
at

 n
ig

ht
 i.

e.
 u

p 
to

 

45
 m

in
ut

es
 w

ill
 e

ns
ue

 u
nl

es
s 

U
S

A
R

 
w

or
ki

ng
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 a
re

 m
od

ifi
ed

 
to

 a
llo

w
 im

m
ed

ia
te

 2
4-

ho
ur

 
re

sp
on

se
. T

he
 'd

ay
 c

re
w

in
g 

pl
us

' 
du

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 -

 w
hi

ch
 w

as
 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 in

to
 L

F
R

S
 

in
 2

01
0 

- 
of

fe
rs

 a
 c

os
t e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

w
ay

 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
n 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 U

S
A

R
 

re
sp

on
se

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
 w

hi
ls

t s
til

l 
ac

hi
ev

in
g 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 o

ve
ra

ll 
co

st
 

sa
vi

ng
s.

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

 -
 M

ai
nt

ai
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
U

S
A

R
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

ac
ce

pt
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

re
sp

on
se

 ti
m

e 
at

 
ni

gh
ts

.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 T

ab
le

 5
.2

 
sh

ow
s 

th
at

 th
e 

M
IS

U
 a

tte
nd

ed
 4

5 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

ov
er

 th
e 

th
re

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
th

e 
ho

ur
s 

of
 1

80
0 

an
d 

08
00

.
A

do
pt

io
n 

of
 th

is
 o

pt
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 d

ep
lo

ym
en

t t
im

e 
of

 
up

 to
 4

5 
m

in
ut

es
 w

ou
ld

 r
es

ul
t f

or
 a

n 
av

er
ag

e 
of

 1
5 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
pe

r 
ye

ar
.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 4

 
fir

ef
ig

ht
er

 p
os

ts
 a

t C
50

 P
re

st
on

. 

W
e 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
o

re
 p

ro
p

o
si

n
g

 t
h

at
 

th
e 

M
IS

U
 a

t 
P

re
st

o
n

 is
 r

em
o

ve
d

 
fr

o
m

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
n

d
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
U

S
A

R
 

te
am

 p
ro

vi
d

e 
th

e 
so

le
 m

aj
o

r 
in

ci
d

en
t 

su
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 h
ea

vy
 

re
sc

u
e 

ca
p

ab
ili

ty
 in

 t
h

e 
fu

tu
re

.

In
 m

ak
in

g
 t

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

sa
l, 

tw
o

 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
ca

n
 b

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
:

Page 51



32

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 A
nn

ua
l 

re
ve

nu
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

of
 £

15
0,

00
0.

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

 -
 U

pg
ra

de
 U

S
A

R
 to

 a
 

da
y-

cr
ew

in
g 

pl
us

 (
D

C
P

) 
ty

pe
 

sy
st

em
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 

24
-h

ou
r 

re
sp

on
se

. 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 r
es

po
ns

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 R

ed
uc

tio
n 

of
 

4 
fir

ef
ig

ht
er

 p
os

ts
 a

t P
re

st
on

 a
nd

 
on

e 
U

S
A

R
 W

at
ch

 M
an

ag
er

 (
a 

D
C

P
 

du
ty

 s
ys

te
m

 w
ou

ld
 r

eq
ui

re
 1

4,
 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g,
 1

5 
U

S
A

R
 

st
af

f)
.

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 A
nn

ua
l 

re
ve

nu
e 

sa
vi

ng
s 

of
 £

11
3,

 0
00

. 
C

ap
ita

l c
os

ts
 fo

r 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
of

 £
25

,0
00

 a
nd

 u
p 

to
 £

30
0,

00
0 

fo
r 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

fa
ci

lit
y 

(t
he

 U
S

A
R

 te
am

 is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

at
 L

ey
la

nd
 

pe
nd

in
g 

th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 
C

ho
rle

y 
fir

e 
st

at
io

n 
in

 la
te

 2
01

3.
 

T
he

 £
25

,0
00

 te
m

po
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

co
st

s 
w

ou
ld

 
fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
in

 e
ar

ly
 2

01
1 

pe
nd

in
g 

a 
pe

rm
an

en
t p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
t 

th
e 

ne
w

 C
ho

rle
y 

st
at

io
n)

.

In
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f e
ith

er
 o

pt
io

n,
 it

 is
 a

ls
o 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

U
S

A
R

 te
am

 
ha

s 
a 

na
tio

na
l r

ol
e 

i.e
. i

t c
ou

ld
 -

 
ho

w
ev

er
 u

nl
ik

el
y 

- 
be

 d
ep

lo
ye

d 
ou

ts
id

e 
La

nc
as

hi
re

 fo
r 

a 
pr

ot
ra

ct
ed

 
pe

rio
d.

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

m
aj

or
 in

ci
de

nt
 

su
pp

or
t/h

ea
vy

 r
es

cu
e 

fu
nc

tio
n 

fo
r 

LF
R

S
 in

 s
uc

h 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

w
ill

 
be

 n
ee

de
d 

th
ou

gh
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

 e
xi

st
 a

nd
 th

is
 

is
 n

ot
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
to

 b
e 

an
 o

bs
ta

cl
e 

to
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

 

5.
1.

2 
Bo

at
 P

ro
vi

si
on

In
 c

on
tr

as
t t

o 
5.

1.
1 

de
ta

ile
d 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
, t

he
re

 is
 n

o 
le

ga
l 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 u

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 

w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y.

N
ot

w
ith

st
an

di
ng

 th
is

, t
he

 a
bs

en
ce

 
of

 a
ny

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

pr
ov

id
er

 (
no

 
ag

en
cy

 h
as

 r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
in

la
nd

 w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
at

 th
e 

pr
es

en
t 

tim
e)

; a
 le

ga
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’

 h
ea

lth
 a

nd
 

sa
fe

ty
; a

nd
 a

 p
ub

lic
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

n 
th

at
 th

e 
fir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 r

es
po

nd
 to

 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r 
as

si
st

an
ce

 w
he

re
 

w
at

er
 r

el
at

ed
 'e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s'

 o
cc

ur
, 

ha
s 

m
ea

nt
 w

e 
ha

ve
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
a 

bo
at

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 fo

r 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 p
ur

po
se

s 
si

nc
e 

19
97

. 
T

w
o 

bo
at

 u
ni

ts
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 
pr

ov
id

ed
: o

ne
 -

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pa

l 
re

so
ur

ce
 -

 a
t P

re
st

on
 a

nd
 a

 
se

co
nd

 b
ac

k 
up

 a
t P

en
w

or
th

am
.

W
hi

ls
t t

he
 b

oa
t(

s)
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

so
le

 r
es

po
ns

e 
fo

r 
10

 y
ea

rs
, o

ur
 

w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
ca

pa
bi

lit
y 

w
as

 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 im

pr
ov

ed
 in

 2
00

7 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
up

gr
ad

e 
of

 s
ev

en
 

st
ra

te
gi

ca
lly

 lo
ca

te
d 

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 to
 a

 'w
at

er
 

re
sc

ue
 p

um
p'

 s
ta

tu
s.

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t 

w
as

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

ed
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 g
iv

en
 to

 s
ta

ff 
at

 th
es

e 
st

at
io

ns
 to

 e
na

bl
e 

th
em

 to
 o

pe
ra

te
 

sa
fe

ly
 a

nd
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
in

 w
at

er
. A

t 
an

y 
su

ch
 in

ci
de

nt
, o

ne
 o

r 
m

or
e 

of
 

th
es

e 
ve

hi
cl

es
 n

ow
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

in
iti

al
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 a
nd

 th
e 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

a 
bo

at
 -

 a
nd

 th
e 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 tr

ai
ne

d 
st

af
f -

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

ly
 r

ed
uc

ed
. 

Ta
bl

e 
5.

3 
on

 p
ag

e 
33

 d
et

ai
ls

 th
e 

ex
te

nt
 o

f b
oa

t a
ct

iv
ity

 a
t P

re
st

on
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 d
ep

lo
ye

d 
vi

a 
th

e 
M

IS
U

 
w

hi
ls

t t
he

 P
en

w
or

th
am

 u
ni

t 
op

er
at

es
 a

s 
a 

fa
llb

ac
k 

an
d 

is
 n

ot
 

ro
ut

in
el

y 
m

ob
ili

se
d.

 A
s 

is
 e

vi
de

nt
, 

ac
tiv

ity
 is

 v
er

y 
lim

ite
d,

 a
nd

 w
hi

ls
t 

th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t r

em
ai

ns
 fo

r 
a 

bo
at

 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
pu

m
ps

, a
n 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 e

xi
st

s 
to

 
re

vi
se

 e
xi

st
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

co
ns

ol
id

at
e 

on
 o

ne
, r

at
he

r 
th

an
 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

tw
o 

bo
at

 u
ni

ts
. 

Page 52



Ta
bl

e 
5.

3 
- 

M
IS

U
 W

at
er

 R
es

cu
e 

A
ct

iv
ity

 2
00

7/
09

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
 M

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s

49 62 24 13
5

Y
ea

r

20
07

20
08

20
09

To
ta

l

   
  A

tt
en

d
an

ce
s

15 26 13 54

33

O
f t

he
 tw

o 
st

at
io

ns
, P

en
w

or
th

am
 is

 
m

uc
h 

le
ss

 b
us

y 
op

er
at

io
na

lly
 a

nd
 

is
 th

er
eb

y 
le

ss
 p

ro
ne

 to
 d

is
ru

pt
io

n.
 

M
or

eo
ve

r,
 a

s 
a 

D
C

P
 s

ta
tio

n,
 1

4 
as

 
op

po
se

d 
to

 th
e 

60
 s

ta
ff 

at
 P

re
st

on
 

ar
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
ei

r 
sw

ift
 

w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
(S

R
T

) 
an

d 
bo

at
 

ha
nd

lin
g 

sk
ill

s,
 b

ot
h 

of
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 
re

so
ur

ce
 in

te
ns

iv
e 

fr
om

 a
 ti

m
e 

an
d 

co
st

 p
er

sp
ec

tiv
e.

 A
 c

on
so

lid
at

ed
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

P
en

w
or

th
am

 
bo

at
 u

ni
t w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
pe

rm
it 

th
e 

re
m

ov
al

 o
f P

re
st

on
 a

s 
a 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 s

w
ift

 w
at

er
 r

es
cu

e 
st

at
io

n 
el

im
in

at
in

g 
th

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
co

st
s.

W
e 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
o

re
 

p
ro

p
o

si
n

g
 t

h
at

 t
h

e 
b

o
at

 
an

d
 S

R
T

 p
ro

vi
si

o
n

 a
t 

C
50

 
P

re
st

o
n

 is
 r

em
o

ve
d

 a
n

d
 

th
at

 w
e 

co
n

so
lid

at
e 

o
n

 
o

n
e 

b
o

at
 u

n
it

 (
w

h
ils

t 
m

ai
n

ta
in

in
g

 t
w

o
 b

o
at

s 
fo

r 
re

si
lie

n
ce

) 
at

 C
57

 
P

en
w

o
rt

h
am

.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 m

ob
ili

se
 

bo
at

 o
ut

 o
f C

ou
nt

y.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 N

on
e.

F
in

an
ci

al
 im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 R
ev

en
ue

 
sa

vi
ng

s 
of

 £
18

,0
00

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 a
nn

ua
l t

ra
in

in
g 

co
st

s.

5.
1.

3 
Ro

pe
 R

es
cu

e

S
in

ce
 1

99
5,

 w
e 

ha
ve

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

a 
ro

pe
 r

es
cu

e 
te

am
 a

t S
t A

nn
es

 
fir

e 
st

at
io

n 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 le

ve
l o

f 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

ov
er

 a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 th

at
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 fr
on

t l
in

e 
fir

e 
en

gi
ne

s.
 T

he
 te

am
 r

es
po

nd
s 

to
 

th
e 

m
or

e 
co

m
pl

ex
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

in
vo

lv
in

g 
re

sc
ue

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
or

 
an

im
al

s 
ab

ov
e 

or
 b

el
ow

 g
ro

un
d 

an
d/

or
 in

 c
on

fin
ed

 s
pa

ce
s,

 a
nd

 
su

pp
or

ts
 o

th
er

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l 

ac
tiv

ity
. W

hi
ls

t t
he

re
 is

 n
o 

le
ga

l 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t f
or

 u
s 

to
 m

ak
e 

th
is

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 th
e 

te
am

 w
as

 fo
rm

ed
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 h

ig
h 

le
ve

l 
re

sc
ue

s 
e.

g.
 B

la
ck

po
ol

 T
ow

er
, 

w
he

re
 th

e 
sh

or
tc

om
in

gs
 o

f 
co

nv
en

tio
na

l e
qu

ip
m

en
t a

nd
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
er

e 
ap

pa
re

nt
. 

A
s 

ta
bl

es
 5

.4
 a

nd
 5

.5
 fo

llo
w

in
g 

sh
ow

, t
he

 te
am

's
 a

ct
iv

ity
 le

ve
ls

 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ve
ry

 lo
w

. F
ro

m
 a

 s
ta

ff 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
ffe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
st

an
dp

oi
nt

, h
ow

ev
er

, t
he

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 te
am

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
an

 
im

po
rt

an
t r

es
ou

rc
e 

w
he

n 
ne

ed
ed

.

Ta
bl

e 
5.

4 
- 

Ro
pe

 R
es

cu
e 

Te
am

 A
ct

iv
ity

 2
00

7/
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
-H

ou
r P

er
io

d
M

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s

33 36 81 15
0

Y
ea

r

20
07

20
08

20
09

To
ta

l

A
tt

en
d

an
ce

s

12 16 43 71

Page 53



34

Ta
bl

e 
5.

5 
- 

Ro
pe

 R
es

cu
e 

Te
am

 A
ct

iv
ity

 2
00

7/
09

   
   

   
   

   
   

18
00

 -
 0

80
0 

H
ou

rs
M

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s

18 13 33 64

Y
ea

r

20
07

20
08

20
09

To
ta

l

A
tt

en
d

an
ce

s

7 7 18 32

H
is

to
ric

al
ly

, a
ll 

ro
pe

 r
es

cu
e 

te
am

 
m

em
be

rs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

dr
aw

n 
fr

om
 th

e 
w

ho
le

tim
e 

an
d 

R
D

S
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

t S
t A

nn
es

, a
nd

 w
hi

ls
t 

th
is

 v
ol

un
te

er
 e

th
os

 is
 e

xt
re

m
el

y 
co

m
m

en
da

bl
e,

 it
 h

as
 p

ro
ve

d 
pr

ob
le

m
at

ic
 in

 tw
o 

re
sp

ec
ts

: 

di
ffi

cu
lti

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

 in
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
ea

m
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
a 

co
nt

in
uo

us
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y;

 a
nd

th
e 

ab
ili

ty
 to

 r
el

ie
ve

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 te
am

 m
em

be
rs

 a
t 

pr
ot

ra
ct

ed
 in

ci
de

nt
s 

du
e 

to
 

th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 o

th
er

 
qu

al
ifi

ed
 s

ta
ff 

ha
s 

be
en

 
ex

pe
rie

nc
ed

.

W
ith

 th
e 

tr
an

si
tio

n 
of

 S
t A

nn
es

 
st

at
io

n 
to

 d
ay

 c
re

w
in

g 
pl

us
 (

D
C

P
) 

in
 J

ul
y 

20
10

, a
ll 

14
 D

C
P

 s
ta

ff 
ar

e 
no

w
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 b

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f t
he

 
ro

pe
 r

es
cu

e 
te

am
 a

s 
a 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
R

D
S

 v
ol

un
te

er
s,

 
th

is
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

gr
ea

te
r 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
in

 
te

rm
s 

of
 o

ve
ra

ll 
st

af
f n

um
be

rs
 

th
ou

gh
 th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
 o

f r
el

ie
vi

ng
 

te
am

 m
em

be
rs

 a
t p

ro
tr

ac
te

d 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

re
m

ai
ns

.

A
lo

ng
si

de
 th

es
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 a
t 

S
t A

nn
es

, t
he

 U
S

A
R

 te
am

 -
 w

ho
 

ar
e 

ro
ut

in
el

y 
tr

ai
ne

d 
in

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 
as

 a
 c

on
se

qu
en

ce
 o

f t
he

ir 
pr

im
ar

y 
ro

le
 -

 h
av

e 
al

l r
ec

en
tly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
to

 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

st
an

da
rd

 a
s 

ou
r 

ro
pe

 
re

sc
ue

 te
am

. T
hi

s 
ac

tio
n 

w
as

 

ta
ke

n 
in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 c
on

tin
ui

ty
 

of
 r

op
e 

re
sc

ue
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 u
p 

to
, a

nd
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 fo
llo

w
in

g,
 th

e 
ch

an
ge

 
in

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 a

t S
t 

A
nn

es
 w

hi
ch

 r
es

ul
te

d 
in

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 lo
ng

 s
ta

nd
in

g 
ro

pe
 r

es
cu

e 
op

er
at

iv
es

 tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

of
f t

he
 

st
at

io
n 

an
d 

le
av

in
g 

th
e 

te
am

. T
he

 
U

S
A

R
 te

am
 is

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 d

ep
lo

yi
ng

 
al

on
gs

id
e 

co
lle

ag
ue

s 
fr

om
 S

t 
A

nn
es

 th
ou

gh
 th

e 
re

sp
on

se
 ti

m
e 

at
 n

ig
ht

 is
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

fo
r 

re
as

on
s 

ou
tli

ne
d 

in
 s

ec
tio

n 
5.

1.
1 

pr
ev

io
us

ly
. 

In
 r

es
pe

ct
 o

f f
ut

ur
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n,
 a

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 o
pt

io
ns

 c
an

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
:

O
p

ti
o

n
 1

 -
 U

til
is

e 
th

e 
S

t A
nn

es
 u

ni
t 

(m
ad

e 
up

 o
f D

C
P

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
R

D
S

 
vo

lu
nt

ee
rs

) 
as

 th
e 

so
le

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

A
cc

ep
tin

g 
th

at
 n

o 
gu

ar
an

te
e 

re
ga

rd
in

g 
R

D
S

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

ca
n 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

, 1
4 

D
C

P
 s

ta
ff 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 r

es
po

ns
e 

bu
t p

ro
bl

em
s 

of
 r

el
ie

vi
ng

 s
ta

ff 
at

 
pr

ot
ra

ct
ed

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

ill
 r

em
ai

n.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 C

on
tin

ui
ng

, 
th

ou
gh

 r
ed

uc
ed

, r
el

ia
nc

e 
on

 R
D

S
 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rs
.

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 N
on

e

O
p

ti
o

n
 2

 -
 M

ai
nt

ai
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

w
or

ki
ng

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 fo

r 
U

S
A

R
 

st
af

f a
nd

 u
se

 a
s 

th
e 

so
le

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 c
ap

ab
ili

ty
, a

cc
ep

tin
g 

th
e 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
re

sp
on

se
 ti

m
e 

at
 n

ig
ht

s.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 T

ab
le

 
5.

5 
pr

ev
io

us
 s

ho
w

s 
th

at
 th

e 
ro

pe
 

re
sc

ue
 te

am
 a

tte
nd

ed
 3

2 
in

ci
de

nt
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ho
ur

s 
of

 1
80

0 
an

d 
08

00
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

th
re

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
w

hi
ch

 -
 if

 th
is

 o
pt

io
n 

is
 a

do
pt

ed
 -

 
w

ou
ld

 m
ea

n 
th

at
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
 

re
sp

on
se

 ti
m

e 
of

 u
p 

to
 4

5 
m

in
ut

es
 

w
ou

ld
 r

es
ul

t f
or

 a
n 

av
er

ag
e 

of
 1

1 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

fir
st

 
at

te
nd

an
ce

 n
ee

ds
 b

ut
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

of
 

re
lie

vi
ng

 s
ta

ff 
at

 p
ro

tr
ac

te
d 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

ill
 r

em
ai

n.
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 

th
e 

U
S

A
R

 te
am

 d
ue

 to
 a

 n
at

io
na

l 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 N

on
e

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 N
on

e

O
p

ti
o

n
 3

 -
 U

pg
ra

de
 U

S
A

R
 to

 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 2
4-

ho
ur

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

us
e 

as
 th

e 
so

le
 r

op
e 

re
sc

ue
 

th
ei

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
at

 th
e 

st
at

io
n.

 T
ak

en
in

ci
de

nt
s 

pe
r 

ye
ar

. 1
4 

U
S

A
R

 s
ta

ff

Page 54



35

ca
pa

bi
lit

y 
(o

nl
y 

vi
ab

le
 if

 th
e 

op
tio

n 
to

 u
pg

ra
de

 U
S

A
R

 fo
r 

m
aj

or
 

in
ci

de
nt

 s
up

po
rt

/h
ea

vy
 r

es
cu

e 
as

 
de

ta
ile

d 
in

 5
.1

.1
 is

 a
do

pt
ed

)

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 1

4 
U

S
A

R
 s

ta
ff 

m
ay

 b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 fo
r 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 r

es
po

ns
e 

bu
t p

ro
bl

em
s 

of
 r

el
ie

vi
ng

 s
ta

ff 
at

 p
ro

tr
ac

te
d 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
w

ill
 r

em
ai

n.
 C

on
tin

ge
nc

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 th
e 

ab
se

nc
e 

of
 

th
e 

U
S

A
R

 te
am

 d
ue

 to
 a

 n
at

io
na

l 
de

pl
oy

m
en

t w
ill

 a
ls

o 
be

 r
eq

ui
re

d.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 A

s 
pe

r 
5.

1.
1 

op
tio

n 
2.

 

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 A
s 

pe
r 

5.
1.

1 
op

tio
n 

2.

O
p

ti
o

n
 4

 -
 U

til
is

e 
bo

th
 th

e 
S

t 
A

nn
es

 (
D

C
P

 s
ta

ff 
on

ly
) 

an
d 

U
S

A
R

 
te

am
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 d
ua

l p
ro

vi
si

on
 

w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ob

ili
se

d 
on

 a
 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 a
nd

/o
r 

tim
e-

ba
se

d 
m

od
el

.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 D

ua
l 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 o
ffe

rs
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

re
si

lie
nc

e 
an

d 
ad

dr
es

se
s 

is
su

e 
of

 
re

lie
vi

ng
 te

am
 m

em
be

rs
 a

t 
pr

ot
ra

ct
ed

 in
ci

de
nt

s.
 

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 R

D
S

 r
op

e 
re

sc
ue

 v
ol

un
te

er
s 

no
 lo

ng
er

 
re

qu
ire

d 
at

 S
t A

nn
es

.

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 C
ap

ita
l 

co
st

 o
f £

10
,0

00
 to

 fu
lly

 e
qu

ip
 

U
S

A
R

 te
am

 fo
r 

ro
pe

 r
es

cu
e 

re
sp

on
se

.

O
n

 t
h

e 
b

as
is

 o
f 

lo
n

g
-t

er
m

 
su

st
ai

n
ab

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 e

n
h

an
ce

d
 

re
si

lie
n

ce
, w

e 
ar

e 
p

ro
p

o
si

n
g

 
o

p
ti

o
n

 4
 a

s 
th

e 
o

p
ti

m
u

m
 

ap
p

ro
ac

h
.

.

Page 55



36

5.
2 

U
N

W
A

N
TE

D
 F

IR
E 

SI
G

N
A

LS
 

A
dv

an
ce

m
en

ts
 in

 te
ch

no
lo

gy
 h

av
e 

m
ad

e 
fir

e 
al

ar
m

 s
ys

te
m

s 
m

uc
h 

m
or

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 th
is

, t
og

et
he

r 
w

ith
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f n

ew
 fi

re
 s

af
et

y 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n,
 h

as
 c

au
se

d 
th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 in
st

al
la

tio
ns

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
. 

A
lo

ng
si

de
 th

is
 g

ro
w

th
, a

 
co

rr
es

po
nd

in
g 

in
cr

ea
se

 in
 th

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 fa
ls

e 
al

ar
m

s 
ha

s 
oc

cu
rr

ed
.

W
hi

ls
t a

 p
er

m
is

si
bl

e 
le

ve
l o

f '
fa

ls
e 

al
ar

m
' i

s 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

fo
r 

fir
e 

al
ar

m
 

sy
st

em
s 

(s
ee

 B
S

 5
83

9)
, t

hi
s 

is
 v

er
y 

lo
w

 a
t i

.e
. o

ne
 u

nw
an

te
d 

fir
e 

si
gn

al
 

pe
r 

de
te

ct
or

 h
ea

d 
pe

r 
hu

nd
re

d 
ye

ar
s,

 e
m

ph
as

is
in

g 
th

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

of
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

m
an

ag
ed

 s
ys

te
m

s.
 A

s 
a 

lif
e 

an
d 

bu
ild

in
g 

pr
ot

ec
tio

n 
fe

at
ur

e,
 

fir
e 

al
ar

m
 s

ys
te

m
s 

- 
w

he
n 

pr
op

er
ly

 
in

st
al

le
d,

 m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

an
d 

m
an

ag
ed

 
- 

cl
ea

rly
 e

nh
an

ce
 p

ub
lic

 s
af

et
y.

 
U

nf
or

tu
na

te
ly

, n
ot

 a
ll 

sy
st

em
s 

ar
e 

in
st

al
le

d 
co

rr
ec

tly
 a

nd
/o

r 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d,
 a

nd
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
so

m
et

im
es

 fa
ll 

sh
or

t o
f w

ha
t i

s 
re

qu
ire

d.
 A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 fi

re
 a

la
rm

 
sy

st
em

s 
ge

ne
ra

te
 'u

nw
an

te
d 

fir
e 

si
gn

al
s'

 (
U

w
F

S
) 

i.e
. a

n 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

ca
ll 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
by

 a
n 

au
to

m
at

ic
 fi

re
 

al
ar

m
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

ve
s 

to
 b

e 
a 

fa
ls

e 
al

ar
m

.

In
 2

00
9/

10
 w

e 
at

te
nd

ed
 2

0,
36

7 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
of

 w
hi

ch
 

al
m

os
t o

ne
-t

hi
rd

 w
er

e 
U

w
F

S
. T

hi
s 

ha
s 

a 
hu

ge
 im

pa
ct

 in
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 

re
sp

ec
ts

 e
.g

.:

th
e 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 p

os
es

 
a 

ris
k 

to
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
ro

ad
 

us
er

s;

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
s 

ar
e 

un
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r 

ge
nu

in
e 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s;

di
sr

up
tio

n 
is

 c
au

se
d 

to
 o

th
er

 
fir

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 e

.g
. f

ire
 

sa
fe

ty
 v

is
its

, t
ra

in
in

g 
et

c;

di
st

ur
ba

nc
e 

fo
r 

re
ta

in
ed

 d
ut

y 
sy

st
em

 s
ta

ff 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

em
pl

oy
er

s;
 a

nd

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 r

es
po

ns
e 

co
st

s 
ar

e 
in

cu
rr

ed
.

Q
ui

te
 c

le
ar

ly
, a

ny
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

ca
re

fu
lly

 b
al

an
ce

d 
ag

ai
ns

t t
he

 
re

la
te

d 
ris

ks
, a

nd
 th

is
 is

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
im

po
rt

an
t w

he
n 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

ca
lls

 

5.
6 

an
d 

5.
7 

on
 th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pa
ge

 
sh

ow
 th

e 
to

ta
l n

um
be

r 
of

 fi
re

 a
la

rm
 

in
ci

de
nt

s 
in

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
 o

ve
r 

a 
fiv

e-
ye

ar
 p

er
io

d 
br

ok
en

 d
ow

n 
as

 
'p

ub
lic

/c
om

m
er

ci
al

' e
.g

. s
ho

ps
, 

of
fic

es
, s

ch
oo

ls
, h

os
pi

ta
ls

 e
tc

 a
nd

 
'd

om
es

tic
' e

.g
. s

in
gl

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
dw

el
lin

gs
, s

he
lte

re
d 

ho
us

in
g,

 fl
at

s 
et

c.
 A

s 
is

 e
vi

de
nt

, v
er

y 
fe

w
 s

uc
h 

ca
lls

 tu
rn

 o
ut

 to
 b

e 
ac

tu
al

 fi
re

s 
- 

an
d 

th
es

e 
in

 tu
rn

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
m

in
or

 -
 

an
d 

ev
en

 le
ss

 r
es

ul
t i

n 
in

ju
ry

.

fr
om

 a
ut

om
at

ic
 s

ys
te

m
s.

 T
ab

le
s

Page 56



37

Ta
bl

e 
5.

6 
 -

 a
ut

om
at

ic
 fi

re
 a

la
rm

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
20

05
/1

0 
  P

ub
lic

 a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
  

20
07

/0
8

20
06

/0
7

20
05

/0
6

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

To
ta

l

Y
ea

r
C

as
u

al
ti

es
 r

ec
ei

vi
n

g
 o

th
er

 
th

an
 p

re
ca

u
ti

o
n

ar
y 

ch
ec

k 
o

r 
fi

rs
t 

ai
d

 a
t 

sc
en

e 

T
o

ta
l

A
F

A
ca

lls

57
66

63
01

57
12

64
39

59
14

30
13

2

To
ta

l
C

as
u

al
ti

es
F

ir
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g
 

ca
su

al
ti

es
 (

to
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 a

s 
%

 
o

f 
ca

lls
)

R
es

u
lt

an
t 

fi
re

s 
(a

ct
u

al
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 

as
 %

 o
f 

af
a 

ca
lls

)

16
1

25
5

13
4

23
6

15
9

94
5

2.
8%

4.
0%

2.
3%

3.
7%

2.
7%

3.
13

%

42 28 7 23

0.
07

%

0.
03

%

0.
04

%

0.
12

%

0.
12

%

0.
07

%

42 211 15 34

31 19 0 14

Ta
bl

e 
5.

7 
 -

 a
ut

om
at

ic
 fi

re
 a

la
rm

 in
ci

de
nt

s 
20

05
/1

0 
  D

om
es

tic
 P

re
m

is
es

 

20
07

/0
8

20
06

/0
7

20
05

/0
6

20
08

/0
9

20
09

/1
0

To
ta

l

14
89

21
71

14
47

18
21

19
74

89
02

20
4

34
1

17
2

24
9

18
2

11
48

13
.7

%

15
.7

%

11
.9

%

13
.7

%

9.
2%

12
.8

9%

1821 1010 51 11
0

1.
21

%

0.
97

%

0.
69

%

0.
55

%

2.
58

%

1.
23

%

2127 1012 56 12
6

1215 45 10 46

W
hi

ls
t i

t i
s 

fu
lly

 a
cc

ep
te

d 
th

at
 

an
 a

ut
om

at
ic

 fi
re

 a
la

rm
 c

al
l 

ca
n 

re
su

lt 
in

 a
 fi

re
 a

nd
/o

r 
in

ju
ry

, t
he

 li
ke

lih
oo

d 
is

 v
er

y 
lo

w
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 in

 p
ub

lic
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
.

In
 2

00
4,

 w
e 

re
vi

se
d 

ou
r 

re
sp

on
se

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 to

 
au

to
m

at
ic

 fi
re

 a
la

rm
s 

an
d 

m
ad

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

ha
ng

es
 

w
he

re
by

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f c

al
ls

 
no

w
 o

nl
y 

re
ce

iv
e 

an
 

im
m

ed
ia

te
 a

tte
nd

an
ce

 o
f o

ne
 

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
, r

at
he

r 
th

an
 th

e 
tw

o 
or

 e
ve

n 
th

re
e 

as
 in

 th
e 

pa
st

. 
W

e 
ha

ve
 a

ls
o 

w
or

ke
d 

ex
te

ns
iv

el
y 

w
ith

 p
re

m
is

es
 

oc
cu

pi
er

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 p
ro

bl
em

 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
er

ia
l 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
re

 in
 p

la
ce

. 
T

hi
s 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 h
as

 h
el

pe
d 

to
 

fr
ee

 u
p 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
to

 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

ac
tu

al
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
U

w
F

S
 in

 th
e 

in
te

rv
en

in
g 

pe
rio

d.
N

ot
w

ith
st

an
di

ng
 s

uc
h 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, t
he

 le
ve

l o
f 

fa
ls

e 
al

ar
m

s 
re

m
ai

ns
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
ly

 h
ig

h 
an

d 
w

e 
be

lie
ve

 fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
is

 
w

ar
ra

nt
ed

.

Y
ea

r
C

as
u

al
ti

es
 r

ec
ei

vi
n

g
 o

th
er

 
th

an
 p

re
ca

u
ti

o
n

ar
y 

ch
ec

k 
o

r 
fi

rs
t 

ai
d

 a
t 

sc
en

e 

T
o

ta
l

A
F

A
ca

lls

To
ta

l
C

as
u

al
ti

es
F

ir
es

 in
vo

lv
in

g
 

ca
su

al
ti

es
 (

to
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 a

s 
%

 
o

f 
ca

lls
)

R
es

u
lt

an
t 

fi
re

s 
(a

ct
u

al
 n

u
m

b
er

s 
an

d
 

as
 %

 o
f 

af
a 

ca
lls

)

Page 57



38

W
e 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
o

re
 p

ro
p

o
si

n
g

 t
h

e 
in

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a 

'c
al

l c
h

al
le

n
g

e'
 

p
ro

ce
ss

 in
 o

rd
er

 t
o

 r
ed

u
ce

 t
h

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
m

o
b

ili
sa

ti
o

n
s 

to
 

u
n

w
an

te
d

 f
ir

e 
si

g
n

al
s.

 T
h

is
 w

ill
 

ap
p

ly
 t

o
 a

ll 
ca

lls
 o

ri
g

in
at

in
g

 
fr

o
m

 a
n

 A
u

to
m

at
ic

 F
ir

e 
A

la
rm

 
(A

F
A

) 
sy

st
em

, t
h

er
eb

y 
en

su
ri

n
g

 
th

at
 a

 r
es

p
o

n
se

 is
 o

n
ly

 
au

to
m

at
ic

al
ly

 m
ad

e 
w

h
er

e 
a 

p
re

m
is

es
 is

 c
at

eg
o

ri
se

d
 a

s 
'h

ig
h

 
ri

sk
', 

o
r 

w
h

er
e 

th
e 

ca
ll 

is
 li

ke
ly

 t
o

 
b

e 
a 

g
en

u
in

e 
fi

re
. A

n 
ex

am
pl

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
fo

r 
a 

ca
ll 

re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 F

ire
 

C
on

tr
ol

 v
ia

 th
e 

99
9 

sy
st

em
 is

 
sh

ow
n 

rig
ht

.

M
o

d
er

at
e/

o
r 

lo
w

F
ir

e 
P

D
A

M
o

b
ili

se
d

Y
E

S

Y
E

S
A

re
 t

h
er

e 
an

y 
si

g
n

s
 o

f 
fi

re
?

P
re

m
is

es
 d

ir
ec

te
d

 
to

 c
h

ec
k 

an
d

 c
al

l 9
99

 if
fi

re
 is

 d
is

co
ve

re
d

If
 n

o
 c

al
l b

ac
k

re
ce

iv
ed

- 
N

o
re

sp
o

n
se

N
O

F
ir

e 
A

la
rm

 s
ys

te
m

 a
ct

u
at

es

A
re

 p
eo

p
le

as
le

ep
?

H
ig

h

A
F

A
 P

D
A

m
o

b
ili

se
d

N
o

t 
ab

le
to

 c
h

ec
k

N
o

/n
o

t
S

u
reO

cc
u

p
ie

r 
co

n
ta

ct
s 

co
n

tr
o

l v
ia

 9
99

C
o

n
tr

o
l e

st
ab

lis
h

 p
re

m
is

es
 r

is
k

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, w

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 

p
ro

p
o

si
n

g
 t

o
:

E
n

te
r 

in
to

 a
g

re
em

en
ts

 w
it

h
 

A
la

rm
 R

ec
ei

vi
n

g
 C

en
tr

es
 

(A
R

C
) 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 w
h

er
e 

a 
p

re
m

is
es

 is
 n

o
t 

ca
te

g
o

ri
se

d
 a

s 
'h

ig
h

 r
is

k'
, 

th
e 

A
R

C
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ta
ct

 t
h

e 
o

cc
u

p
ie

r 
to

 c
o

n
fi

rm
 if

 t
h

er
e 

is
 a

 f
ir

e 
b

ef
o

re
 p

as
si

n
g

 t
h

e 
ca

ll 
to

 u
s;

A
d

o
p

t 
a 

m
o

re
 r

o
b

u
st

 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
ap

p
ro

ac
h

  i
n

 

re
sp

ec
t 

o
f 

'p
ro

b
le

m
 

p
re

m
is

es
' i

.e
. t

h
o

se
 w

h
er

e 
th

e 
n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

fa
ls

e 
al

ar
m

s 
is

 
h

ig
h

;

Z
o

n
e 

th
e 

la
rg

er
, m

o
re

 
co

m
p

le
x 

'h
ig

h
 r

is
k'

 p
re

m
is

es
 

to
 a

llo
w

 a
 v

ar
ie

d
 p

re
-

d
et

er
m

in
ed

 a
tt

en
d

an
ce

 
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
o

n
 r

is
k 

e.
g

. o
n

 a
 

h
o

sp
it

al
 s

it
e,

 s
o

m
e 

b
u

ild
in

g
s 

m
ay

 a
tt

ra
ct

 a
 g

re
at

er
 o

r 
le

ss
er

 w
ei

g
h

t 
o

f 
at

te
n

d
an

ce
;

P
ro

m
o

te
 r

o
b

u
st

 'o
ff

 li
n

e'
 

p
o

lic
ie

s 
w

h
er

e 
p

re
m

is
es

 a
re

 
o

cc
u

p
ie

d
 a

n
d

 a
 r

es
p

o
n

si
b

le
 

p
er

so
n

 c
an

 m
ak

e 
a 

99
9 

ca
ll 

in
 t

h
e 

ev
en

t 
o

f 
fi

re
;

C
o

n
si

d
er

 t
h

e 
ad

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
 a

 
'd

ri
ve

 t
o

 a
rr

iv
e'

 a
p

p
ro

ac
h

 f
o

r 
p

ro
b

le
m

 p
re

m
is

es
 i.

e.
 a

 f
ir

e 
en

g
in

e 
re

sp
o

n
se

 m
ad

e 
u

n
d

er
 n

o
n

-e
m

er
g

en
cy

 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s.

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 m
ob

ili
sa

tio
ns

 to
 

un
w

an
te

d 
fir

e 
si

gn
al

 in
ci

de
nt

s

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 N

on
e 

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 R
ed

uc
ed

 
op

er
at

in
g 

co
st

s

Page 58



39

5.
3 

RE
TA

IN
ED

 D
U

TY
 S

YS
TE

M
 S

TA
TI

O
N

 C
AT

CH
M

EN
T 

A
RE

A
S 

R
et

ai
ne

d 
du

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 (

R
D

S
) 

st
af

f 
ar

e 
a 

ke
y 

co
m

po
ne

nt
 o

f o
ur

 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
an

d 
em

er
ge

nc
y 

re
sp

on
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y.

 In
 c

on
tr

as
t t

o 
th

ei
r 

w
ho

le
tim

e 
du

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s 
(w

he
re

 th
e 

fir
e 

an
d 

re
sc

ue
 s

er
vi

ce
 

is
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
em

pl
oy

er
) 

R
D

S
 s

ta
ff 

of
te

n 
w

or
k 

fo
r 

ot
he

r 
em

pl
oy

er
s,

 o
r 

ar
e 

se
lf-

em
pl

oy
ed

, w
hi

ls
t a

ls
o 

gi
vi

ng
 c

ov
er

 fo
r 

up
 to

 1
20

 h
ou

rs
 

pe
r 

w
ee

k 
du

rin
g 

w
hi

ch
 ti

m
e 

th
ey

 
ar

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

by
 a

le
rt

er
 to

 r
es

po
nd

 
to

 a
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y.
 R

D
S

 s
ta

ff 
al

so
 

at
te

nd
 o

ne
 e

ve
ni

ng
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

fo
r 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 c
ar

ry
 o

ut
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
sa

fe
ty

 w
or

k 
e.

g.
 h

om
e 

fir
e 

sa
fe

ty
 

ch
ec

ks
, i

n 
th

ei
r 

st
at

io
n 

ar
ea

s.
 D

ue
 

to
 th

e 
'o

n-
ca

ll'
 n

at
ur

e,
 R

D
S

 s
ta

ff 
liv

e 
an

d/
or

 w
or

k 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 
to

 th
ei

r 
re

sp
ec

tiv
e 

st
at

io
ns

 w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 th
e 

m
or

e 
ru

ra
l 

ar
ea

s 
of

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
. T

hi
rt

y-
tw

o 
of

 
ou

r 
si

xt
y 

fir
e 

en
gi

ne
s 

ar
e 

st
af

fe
d 

ex
cl

us
iv

el
y 

by
 R

D
S

 p
er

so
nn

el
 a

nd
 

st
th

er
e 

w
er

e 
42

9 
R

D
S

 s
ta

ff 
as

 o
f 1

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
0 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
an

 e
ss

en
tia

l 
an

d 
ve

ry
 c

os
t-

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
se

rv
ic

e.

D
ue

 to
 th

e 
'o

n-
ca

ll'
 r

eq
ui

re
m

en
t a

nd
 

th
e 

ne
ed

 to
 m

ob
ili

se
 fi

re
 e

ng
in

es
 a

s 
qu

ic
kl

y 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 R

D
S

 s
ta

tio
ns

 
ha

ve
 h

is
to

ric
al

ly
 r

ec
ru

ite
d 

st
af

f f
ro

m
 

a 
ca

tc
hm

en
t a

re
a 

w
hi

ch
 a

llo
w

s 
fo

r 
a 

re
sp

on
se

 in
to

 th
e 

st
at

io
n 

w
ith

in
 fi

ve
 

m
in

ut
es

 w
he

n 
an

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

ca
ll 

is
 

re
ce

iv
ed

. I
n 

re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

, i
t h

as
 

pr
ov

ed
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

ly
 d

iff
ic

ul
t a

t s
om

e 
st

at
io

ns
 to

 r
ec

ru
it 

su
ita

bl
e 

R
D

S
 

ca
nd

id
at

es
 fr

om
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

de
fin

ed
 

ca
tc

hm
en

t a
re

as
. A

s 
a 

re
su

lt,
 s

om
e 

R
D

S
 fi

re
 e

ng
in

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
un

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 r
es

po
nd

 to
 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
in

ci
de

nt
s,

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

da
y.

 

ge
ne

ra
l e

xt
en

si
on

 o
f c

at
ch

m
en

t 
ar

ea
s,

 w
e 

be
lie

ve
 th

at
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 p
os

si
bl

e 
at

 s
om

e 
m

or
e 

is
ol

at
ed

 s
ta

tio
ns

 if
 w

e 
al

lo
w

 
up

 to
 s

ev
en

, r
at

he
r 

th
an

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g,

 
fiv

e 
m

in
ut

es
. T

hi
s 

w
ou

ld
 g

iv
e 

us
 a

 
bi

gg
er

 p
oo

l f
or

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t, 

w
hi

ch
 in

 
tu

rn
 c

ou
ld

 h
el

p 
im

pr
ov

e 
R

D
S

 fi
re

 
en

gi
ne

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y.

 

W
e 

ar
e 

th
er

ef
o

re
 

p
ro

p
o

si
n

g
 -

 in
 li

n
e 

w
it

h
 

o
u

r 
ex

is
ti

n
g

 p
o

lic
y 

o
f 

se
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

n
ea

re
st

 
av

ai
la

b
le

 f
ir

e 
en

g
in

e 
to

 
an

 e
m

er
g

en
cy

 c
al

l -
 t

h
at

 
th

e 
ca

tc
h

m
en

t 
ar

ea
 f

o
r 

re
cr

u
it

m
en

t 
at

 t
h

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 R
D

S
 s

ta
ti

o
n

s
b

e 
ex

te
n

d
ed

 f
ro

m
 f

iv
e 

to
 

se
ve

n
 m

in
u

te
s.

L
o

n
g

ri
d

g
e

C
lit

h
er

o
e

S
ilv

er
d

al
e

H
o

rn
b

y
G

ar
st

an
g

P
re

es
al

l
B

ac
u

p
E

ar
b

y
O

rm
sk

ir
k

W
hi

ls
t o

ur
 p

ol
ic

y 
of

 d
ep

lo
yi

ng
 th

e 
ne

ar
es

t a
va

ila
bl

e 
fir

e 
en

gi
ne

 to
 

em
er

ge
nc

ie
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 m
et

 b
y 

se
nd

in
g 

th
os

e 
fr

om
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

st
at

io
ns

, t
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r 

of
 R

D
S

 
st

at
io

ns
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 g
eo

gr
ap

hi
ca

lly
 

re
m

ot
e 

an
d 

w
hi

ch
 -

 if
 a

n 
ex

te
nd

ed
ca

tc
hm

en
t a

re
a 

w
as

 p
er

m
itt

ed
 -

 
w

ou
ld

 s
til

l e
na

bl
e 

a 
fa

st
er

 r
es

po
ns

e
th

an
 if

 fi
re

 e
ng

in
es

 fr
om

ne
ig

hb
ou

rin
g 

st
at

io
n/

s 
w

er
e 

se
nt

.
W

hi
ls

t w
e 

ar
e 

no
t a

dv
oc

at
in

g 
a 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l I

m
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 

Im
pr

ov
ed

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

at
 s

om
e 

R
D

S
 s

ta
tio

ns
 a

nd
 c

on
se

qu
en

tia
l

fa
st

er
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 e

m
er

ge
nc

ie
s.

S
ta

ffi
ng

 Im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 -
 G

re
at

er
 

ca
tc

hm
en

t a
re

a 
an

d 
la

rg
er

 p
oo

l 
fo

r 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t.

F
in

an
ci

al
 Im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 N
on

e.

Page 59



40

A
cc

id
en

ta
l D

w
el

lin
g

 F
ir

e 
- 

A 
'P

rim
ar

y 
F

ire
' o

cc
ur

rin
g 

in
 a

 
pr

op
er

ty
 c

la
ss

ed
 a

s 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

dw
el

lin
g 

w
he

re
 th

e 
ca

us
e 

of
 th

e 
fir

e 
is

 r
ec

or
de

d 
as

 a
cc

id
en

ta
l o

r 
no

t k
no

w
n.

C
F

A
 -

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
F

ire
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

-
th

e 
bo

dy
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 in

 la
w

 fo
r 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 fi

re
 a

nd
 r

es
cu

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
.

C
ri

ti
ca

l F
ir

e 
- 

A
ny

 fi
re

 li
ke

ly
 to

 
in

vo
lv

e 
a 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 th

re
at

 to
 li

fe
, 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 o

r 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t.

D
el

ib
er

at
e 

F
ir

e 
- 

A
ny

 fi
re

 (
pr

im
ar

y 
or

 s
ec

on
da

ry
) 

w
he

re
 th

e 
ca

us
e 

is
 

re
co

rd
ed

 a
s 

de
lib

er
at

e,
 d

ou
bt

fu
l o

r 
m

al
ic

io
us

.

L
F

R
S

 -
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 F
ire

 a
nd

 
R

es
cu

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 -

 e
m

pl
oy

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
C

F
A 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
fir

e 
an

d 
re

sc
ue

 
se

rv
ic

e 
in

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
.

M
al

ic
io

u
s 

F
al

se
 A

la
rm

 -
 A

 c
al

l 
m

ad
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

in
te

nt
io

n 
of

 g
et

tin
g 

th
e 

fir
e 

an
d 

re
sc

ue
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 
at

te
nd

 a
 n

on
-e

xi
st

in
g 

em
er

ge
nc

y.

P
ri

m
ar

y 
F

ir
e 

- 
A

ny
 fi

re
 in

vo
lv

in
g 

ca
su

al
tie

s,
 r

es
cu

es
 o

r 
es

ca
pe

 O
R

 
an

y 
fir

e 
in

vo
lv

in
g 

da
m

ag
e 

to
 

pr
op

er
ty

 (
ex

cl
ud

in
g 

de
re

lic
t 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 v
eh

ic
le

s)
 O

R
 a

ny
 

fir
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 b
y 

5 
or

 m
or

e 
fir

e 
ap

pl
ia

nc
es

.

S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
F

ir
e 

- 
A

ny
 fi

re
 n

ot
 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 a
 'P

rim
ar

y 
F

ire
', 

w
hi

ch
 d

id
 n

ot
 in

vo
lv

e 
ca

su
al

tie
s 

or
 

re
sc

ue
s 

an
d 

w
as

 a
tte

nd
ed

 b
y 

fo
ur

 
or

 fe
w

er
 a

pp
lia

nc
es

. F
ire

s 
in

 
de

re
lic

t b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 

cl
as

si
fie

d 
as

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 fi

re
s,

 a
s 

ar
e 

ch
im

ne
y 

fir
es

 c
on

fin
ed

 to
 th

e 
ch

im
ne

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
e.

U
n

w
an

te
d

 F
ir

e 
S

ig
n

al
 (

U
w

F
S

) 
- 

A
 c

al
l i

ni
tia

te
d 

as
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
ac

tu
at

io
n 

of
 a

n 
au

to
m

at
ic

 fi
re

 
al

ar
m

 s
ys

te
m

 w
he

re
 th

e 
fir

e 
an

d 
re

sc
ue

 s
er

vi
ce

 a
tte

nd
ed

 a
nd

 th
e 

ac
tu

at
io

n 
w

as
 n

ot
 th

e 
re

su
lt 

of
 a

 
fir

e.

W
h

o
le

ti
m

e 
(W

/T
) 

- 
U

ni
fo

rm
ed

 
op

er
at

io
na

l s
ta

ff 
w

ho
se

 p
rim

ar
y 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

s 
w

ith
 L

an
ca

sh
ire

 
F

ire
 a

nd
 R

es
cu

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 w

ho
 

w
or

k 
42

 h
ou

rs
 p

er
 w

ee
k 

on
 a

 
da

y/
ni

gh
t s

hi
ft 

sy
st

em
.

R
et

ai
n

ed
 D

u
ty

 S
ys

te
m

 (
R

D
S

) -
 

S
ta

ff 
w

ho
se

 p
rim

ar
y 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t i

s 
w

ith
 a

 n
on

-f
ire

 s
er

vi
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

er
, 

bu
t w

ho
 a

gr
ee

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 p
re

-
de

te
rm

in
ed

 le
ve

l o
f c

ov
er

 fo
r 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 r

an
gi

ng
 fr

om
 

40
 to

 1
20

 h
ou

rs
 p

er
 w

ee
k.

D
ay

-C
re

w
in

g
 -

 A
 d

ut
y 

sy
st

em
 

w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

an
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
re

sp
on

se
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 

w
ho

le
tim

e 
an

d 
re

ta
in

ed
 d

ut
y 

sy
st

em
s.

D
ay

-C
re

w
in

g
 P

lu
s 

(D
C

P
) 

- 
A 

m
or

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
du

ty
 s

ys
te

m
 w

hi
ch

 w
as

 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 in
to

 L
an

ca
sh

ire
 in

 2
00

9 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 in
vo

lv
es

 a
 c

om
bi

na
tio

n 
of

 'o
n 

ca
ll'

 a
nd

 's
ta

nd
by

' p
ro

vi
si

on
 

w
hi

ls
t m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

n 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
re

sp
on

se
 a

nd
 w

hi
ch

 u
til

is
es

 
pu

rp
os

e 
bu

ilt
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
io

n 
in

 
cl

os
e 

pr
ox

im
ity

 to
 fi

re
 s

ta
tio

ns
 fo

r 
th

e 
st

an
db

y 
pe

rio
ds

.

P
ri

m
e 

M
o

ve
r 

- 
A 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t v
eh

ic
le

 
on

to
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 b
e 

m
ou

nt
ed

 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

ea
bl

e 
eq

ui
pm

en
t p

od
s.

A
lt

er
n

at
el

y 
cr

ew
ed

 -
 r

ef
er

s 
to

 
ce

rt
ai

n 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t v

eh
ic

le
s 

w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

cr
ew

ed
 a

t t
he

 d
is

cr
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
of

fic
er

 in
 c

ha
rg

e 
or

 w
he

n 
re

qu
ire

d.

M
aj

o
r 

In
ci

d
en

t 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 U

n
it

 
(M

IS
U

) 
- 

A
n 

em
er

ge
nc

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 s

pe
ci

al
is

ed
 e

qu
ip

m
en

t 
ov

er
 a

nd
 a

bo
ve

 th
at

 c
ar

rie
d 

on
 

fr
on

t l
in

e 
fir

e 
en

gi
ne

s.

Page 60



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
  

Member Development Charter Level 2 
2 September 2010 

 
Report of Head of Democratic Services 

  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update Members on progress regarding the choice of a suitable topic for the Council’s 
submission for Charter Level 2 status. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That Members note the progress made and approve, in principle, that the 

Council’s submission for Charter Level 2 be based on the induction 
programme for new Councillors following the elections in May 2011. 

 
1.0 Introduction 

 
At the meeting on 24 June 2010, Members will recall that the Committee considered 
potential topics for the authority’s Charter Level 2 submission to be made to the North 
West Employers Organisation (NWEO) in November 2011. Members resolved: 

  
(1) That Officers undertake further work around a possible level 2 submission on 

the suggested areas of Community Engagement and the role of Councillors 
as Community Leaders. 

 
(2) That Group Administrators request ideas for a level 2 submission from their 

political groups. 
 
(3) That a decision on the project for a level 2 submission be delegated to the 

Head of Democratic Services in consultation with the Chairman once the 
views of the Committee had been sought by e-mail. 

 
Since that meeting however, officers have spoken with NWEO and talked through 
some of the issues regarding the suitability of Community Engagement and the Role 
of Councillors as Community Leaders for Level 2. The feedback from the NWEO was 
that the ideas around those topics would be unsuitable to develop into a Level 2 
submission because they were difficult to directly link back to Member Development 
or learning activities. They would also be challenging to measure to give a useful 
‘before and after’ picture. 
 
The Democratic Support Officer involved in Member Development has since talked 
informally with the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Committee to look at the 
potential for the induction training programme to be used as the basis for the 
Council’s Level 2 submission. This would seem to be a more suitable option with 

Agenda Item 8Page 61



more easily identifiable ways to measure the ‘before and after’ picture both 
anecdotally and in terms of performance, and the topic is directly linked to Member 
Development and learning activities. 
 
Elsewhere on this agenda there is an update on the special Council meeting planned 
for 13 October 2010 on the theme ‘Would you like to be a Councillor?’. If the 
Committee is minded to take forward induction training as the basis for the Council’s 
Level 2 submission, then baseline information could be gathered at the special 
Council meeting and, should any of the prospective candidates be elected to the 
Council, officers could follow their progress through the induction programme for one 
strand of the submission. 
 
With the Induction being purely Member Development and support, it would meet the 
criteria for NWEO. 
 

  Members are reminded that the Corporate Plan 2010-13 sets out a key Corporate 
 Indicator, CH11, for the Council to achieve level 2 of the Charter next year. 
 

5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 

Achieving Level 2 of the Member Development Charter during 2010/11 is listed as a 
Key Corporate Indicator in the Corporate Plan and a suitable topic must be found as 
soon as possible in order to progress the work that will need to be undertaken. 
 
The options are: 
 
(1) To approve, in principle, the induction programme for new Councillors following 

the elections in May 2011 as the basis for the Council’s Level 2 submission to 
NWEO. 

 
(2) To approve another topic, or suggest that officers carry out more work to 

suggest some other suitable topic, for the Level 2 submission. 
 

The officer preferred option is option 1 because it would appear to satisfy the 
requirements of a Level 2 submission well and would run alongside the work officers 
must do to plan and deliver effective induction training for new Councillors. 
  

5.0 Conclusion  
 

Members are asked to discuss and consider approving, in principle, the induction 
programme for new Councillors following the elections in May 2011 as the basis for 
the Council’s Level 2 submission to NWEO. This would provide a steer for officers to 
take further and report back to the Committee after talking again with NWEO and 
undertaking some initial preparatory work. 
 

 

 
RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
The work of Member Development supports Councillors in delivering the corporate Vision 
and priorities. The Corporate Plan 2010-13 sets out a key Corporate Indicator, CH11, for the 
Council to achieve level 2 of the Charter next year. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 62



CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
All financial expenditure for induction training will come from existing budgets. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
  
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
  

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 63



 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS COMMITTEE  
 
  

 
Special Council Meeting 2010 

2 September 2010 
 

Report of Head of Democratic Services 
  
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
To update Members on progress with the arrangements for the special Council meeting 
2010. 
 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That members note and discuss the progress made so far with arrangements 

for the special Council meeting and feed back any comments and suggestions 
to officers. 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 

At the meeting on 24 June 2010, Members will recall that theme of the special 
council meeting was agreed as ‘Would you like to be a Councillor?’ an event to 
promote the role of City Councillors to people who may be interested in standing in 
the 2011 local elections. This type of event is usually held before a local election to 
give potential candidates further information about standing for election as a 
Councillor. This year, by using the special Council meeting, the event will be on a 
larger scale and should attract more interest.  
 
It was agreed that officers would report further to the Committee on the progress 
made with arrangements at this meeting. 
 

2.0 Progress so far 
 

Officers will report further at the meeting itself. However, at the time of drafting this 
report, political group leaders have already been approached to ask if they:-  

(a) Could publicise this event through their own group channels to any 
prospective candidates. 

(b) Would be willing to speak to the group of candidates for 5 or 10 minutes at 
the meeting about their work as a Councillor, perhaps covering why they first 
became interested in standing and giving a flavour of the Ward and 
Committee work that they have been involved in.  

Agenda Item 9 Page 64



(c) Know of any councillors who are fairly new to the Council in their group who 
would be willing to speak and present their point of view 

To accommodate prospective candidates who work, it is felt that the meeting should 
start at 6pm, with a sandwich buffet available before the meeting commences. 

Democratic Services have approached the Community Engagement Service and will 
be working with communications officers to discuss how best to publicise the event to 
the general public closer to the time of the event.  

3.0 Agenda 
 

The content of the meeting is envisaged to cover:- 
 

• Being a Councillor – what will be expected of you. 

• Structure of the Council and decision making. A formal presentation by the Chief 
Executive.  

• Talks from Councillors (Group Leaders and perhaps one or two Councillors 
elected fairly recently) to give their views of what the role of the Elected Members 
is really like.  

• Informal participative session in several small groups round the tables - a mix of 
councillors and prospective candidates to ask questions and discuss. Democratic 
Services staff could pre-draft some questions to start these sessions and/or 
facilitate each table.  

• Feedback from the break away groups and then a talk from officers about the 
support that is available to Councillors (induction training, Democratic Support, 
role of officers, etc)  

• The Elections Officer to present a segment on election procedures and the 
timescales for the May election. 

Written information will be available for prospective candidates to take away with 
them. 

  
4.0 Estimated costs 
 

It was agreed that an estimate of costs would be presented to the Committee at this 
meeting, however the costs will all be contained within the existing Democratic 
Services budget. Using the Council Chamber at Morecambe with the chamber 
seating removed to accommodate more people will avoid any extra cost for room 
hire. It will also be an appropriate place to hold the event, being the room where 
Members hold their full Council meetings. 
 
As with any meeting starting at 6pm, sandwiches would be available for Councillors 
and officers from the start. There will be an additional catering cost for supplying 
extra sandwiches for prospective candidates, but this can be met from the service 
budget. 
 
Costs of providing written materials for prospective candidates will be met from the 
electoral promotions budget. 
 
 
 

Page 65



5.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 

This update is for noting, however comments and suggestions are invited from the 
Committee at this stage to inform officers planning the event. 

 
5.0 Conclusion  
 

This report is in line with the Committee’s responsibility to agree the agenda and 
make arrangements for the annual special Council meeting, as set out in Part 3, 
Section 11 of the Council’s Constitution. The Committee is invited to comment and 
contribute to the planning at this stage. 

 
 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
None 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
All financial expenditure will be contained within existing budgets. It is estimated 
refreshments for the event will be approximately £250 if sandwiches are provided. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
  
The Section 151 Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report. 
  

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None 

Contact Officer: Debbie Chambers 
Telephone:  01524 582057 
E-mail: dchambers@lancaster.gov.uk 
Ref:  

 

Page 66


	Agenda
	5 Local Referendums to Veto Council Tax Rises Consultation
	Consultation Document
	App B Draft Response C Tax Referendums CBC 020910

	6 Member Development Strategy Review
	memberdevelopmentstrategySept10

	7 Fire Service Consultation on Performance Report and Action Plan
	FireandRescueAppendix

	8 Member Development Charter Level 2
	9 Special Council Meeting 2010

